
 

 

 AGENDA 

CITY OF ROCKLIN PLANNING COMMISSION 

DATE: October 18, 2016 

TIME:  6:30 PM 

PLACE:    Council Chambers, 3970 Rocklin Road 

www.rocklin.ca.us 

 

 

Any writing related to an agenda item for the open session of this meeting distributed to the Planning Commission less 

than 72 hours before this meeting is available for inspection at the Community Development Department, 3970 Rocklin 

Road, First Floor, Rocklin, during normal business hours. These writings will also be available for review at the Planning 

Commission meeting in the public access binder located at the back table in the Council Chambers. 

 

CITIZENS ADDRESSING THE COMMISSION 

Citizens may address the Planning Commission on any items on the agenda, when the item is considered.  Citizens 

wishing to speak may request recognition from the presiding officer by raising his or her hand and stepping to the 

podium when requested to do so.  An opportunity will be provided for citizens wishing to speak on non-agenda items to 

similarly request recognition and address the Planning Commission. Three to five-minute time limits may be placed on 

citizen comments. 

 

All persons with electronic presentations for public meetings will be required to bring their own laptop or other form of 

standalone device that is HDMI or VGA compatible.  It is further recommended that presenters arrive early to test their 

presentations.  The City is not responsible for the compatibility or operation of non-city devices or the functionality of 

non-city presentations. 

 

ACCOMMODATING THOSE INDIVIDUALS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Rocklin encourages those with disabilities to 

participate fully in the public hearing process.  If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in 

our public hearing process or programs, please contact our office at (916) 625-5160 well in advance of the public 

hearing or program you wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. 

 

WRITTEN MATERIAL INTRODUCED INTO THE RECORD 

Any citizen wishing to introduce written material into the record at the hearing on any item is requested to provide a 

copy of the written material to the Planning Department prior to the hearing date so that the material may be 

distributed to the Planning Commission prior to the hearing. 

 

COURT CHALLENGES AND APPEAL PERIOD 

Court challenges to any public hearing items may be limited to only those issues which are raised at the public hearing 

described in the notice or in written correspondence delivered to the City at or prior to the public hearing. (Government 

Code Section 65009) 

 

There is a 10-day appeal period for most Planning Commission decisions.  However, a Planning Commission approval of 

a tentative parcel map has a 15-day appeal period.  Appeals can be made by any interested party upon payment of the 

appropriate fee and submittal of the appeal request to the Rocklin City Clerk or the Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin 

Road, Rocklin. 

 

FURTHER INFORMATION 

Any person interested in an agenda item may contact the Planning Staff prior to the meeting date, at 3970 Rocklin 

Road, Rocklin, CA 95677 or by phoning (916) 625-5160 for further information. 

Packet Pg. 1



Agenda of October 18, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

1. Meeting called to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Minutes 

a. September 6, 2016 

b. October 4, 2016 

5. Correspondence 

6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items 

 

CONSENT ITEMS 

 

 None 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

7. PINE STREET TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 

DIVISION OF LAND, DL2016-0004 

 

This application is a request for approval of a Tentative Parcel Map to allow the division of a 13,607 square foot 

parcel into two parcels. Parcel 1 is proposed at 8,807 square feet, and Parcel 2 at 5,520 square feet. A new 2,294 

sq.ft. residence with  443 sq. ft. attached garage is currently under construction on proposed Parcel 1.  The 

subject site is located on the northeast corner of Pine Street and Grove Street.  APN 010-098-005. The property is 

zoned Residential Single Family 5,000 Square Foot Minimum Lots (R1-5).  The General Plan designation is Medium 

Density Residential (MDR). 

 

A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15315, 

Minor Land Divisions, has tentatively identified a Categorical Exemption as the appropriate level of 

environmental review for this project. 

 

The applicant is Carlos Colon.  The property owner is Alma Colon. 

 

a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City Of Rocklin Approving a Notice of Exemption (Pine Street 

Tentative Parcel Map / DL2016-0004) 

 

b. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Tentative Parcel Map (Pine Street 

Tentative Parcel Map / DL2016-0004) 

 

Packet Pg. 2



Agenda of October 18, 2016 

Page 3 

 

8. GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT, PLACER COUNTY 2016 LOCAL MULTI-HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN (LHMP) 

UPDATE (GPA2016-0005) 

CITY OF ROCKLIN 

 

The project is a General Plan Amendment to update the Community Safety Element of the General Plan to 

incorporate by reference the Placer County 2016 Local Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) update consistent 

with the requirements of Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA-2000), which requires local governments to 

update their LHMP every five years in order to be eligible for future federal disaster mitigation funding. 

 

The General Plan Amendment is initiated by the City of Rocklin and would be effective City-wide. 

 

The City of Rocklin’s Environmental Coordinator has reviewed the General Plan Amendment: Placer County 2016 

Local Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update project and has determined that the project as proposed will 

not cause a direct physical change in the environment, nor a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change to 

the environment.  The adoption of the LHMP therefore does not constitute the approval of a project under the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and it is considered exempt from CEQA (Public Resources Code 

sections 15060 (c)(2)(3); 15061 (b)(3) and 15378 (a).) 

 

a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending City Council Approval To 

Amend the City of Rocklin General Plan Community Safety Element to Incorporate by Reference The Placer 

County 2016 Local Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update 

(General Plan Update: Placer County 2016 Local Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update/GPA2016-

0005) 

 

NON PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

9. SEE'S CANDIES AWNING SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE  - APPEAL OF STAFF DETERMINATION 

10. Informational Items and Presentations - None 

11. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners 

12. Reports from City Staff 

13. Adjournment 

 

 

Packet Pg. 3



City of Rocklin  Page 1 
Planning Commission Minutes  September 6, 2016  

CITY OF ROCKLIN  
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 
September 6, 2016 

Rocklin Council Chambers 
Rocklin Administration Building 

3970 Rocklin Road 
(www. rocklin.ca.us) 

 

 
1. Meeting Called to Order at 6:30 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Sloan.   
3. Roll Call  
 
 Commissioner Martinez - excused 

Commissioner Broadway 
Commissioner Sloan 

 Commissioner McKenzie 
 Commissioner Whitmore    
 
 Others Present: 
 

DeeAnne Gillick, Deputy City Attorney  
Laura Webster, Director of Long Range Planning 
Dara Dungworth, Senior Planner 
Nathan Anderson, Associate Planner 
Marc Mondell, Director of Economic & Community Development 
Dave Palmer, City Engineer 

 Terry Stemple, Planning Commission Secretary 
 
 About   12   others 
 
4. Minutes –  Minutes of May 17, 2016 were approved as submitted 

 Minutes of June 7, 2016 were approved as submitted 
 Minutes of July 19, 2016 were approved as submitted 
 

5. Correspondence  -  None 
  

6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items – None   
 
CONSENT ITEMS – None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
7. QUICK QUACK CAR WASH 
 DESIGN REVIEW, DR2015-0016 
 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, U2015-0009 
 
 This application is a request for approval of a Design Review and Conditional Use Permit to allow the 

construction and operation of a 3,586 square foot car wash facility. The subject site is generally located 

Packet Pg. 4

Agenda Item #4.a.



City of Rocklin  Page 2 
Planning Commission Minutes  September 6, 2016  

southwest of the corner of Sunset Blvd and Stanford Ranch Rd, APN 017-400-023. The property is zoned 
Planned Development Business Commercial (PD-C).  The General Plan designation is Retail Commercial (RC). 

 
 A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) has 

tentatively identified a Categorical Exemption, Section 15332 In-Fill Development Projects, as the appropriate 
level of environmental review for this project. 

 
 The applicant is Joe Walters.  The property owner is Golden State Lumber, Inc. 
 
Dara Dungworth, Senior Planner, presented the staff report. 

The Commission had questions for staff regarding: 
 

1. Approved multi-family project east of the Quick Quack project 
 
Applicant, Jason Johnson, owner of Quick Quack carwashes addressed the Commission stating he agrees with the 
raised median condition.  He also mentioned that he worked to get the awnings to match the existing surrounding 
buildings. 
 
The Commission had questions for the applicant regarding: 
 

1. Comparison to Douglas Blvd. store 
2. Number of employees at any given time 
3. Stacking 
4. Markings on pavement 
5. Screening trees between street and stacking lane 
6. Carport type canopy design 
7. Different types of design considered 
8. Consideration of other colors not quite so bright. 

 
The hearing was opened to the public for comment.  
 

1. Tom Yee, representative for owners of Umpqua Bank asked who the responsible party for 
maintenance of the driveway would be. He also asked if the CCR’s recorded for the parcel still runs 
with the parcel. 

 
There being no further comments, the hearing was closed. 
 
Commission Deliberation/Discussion: 
 
Chairman Broadway asked staff to address the drive way maintenance. 
 
Commissioner Whitmore stated that he had exparte communications with the applicant. He is happy to see 
something developing on this property and is generally supportive of the project.  He would like to see some 
screening or art to soften the vacuum area. 
 
Commissioner McKenzie feels the project is consistent with the general plan and zoning.  He is okay with the 
stacking, flow and landscaping.  Stated he had a concern with the color of the roof.  He would like to see 
something like a metal lattice in front of the vacuum stations to screen the cars.  He is generally supportive of the 
project. 
 

Packet Pg. 5

Agenda Item #4.a.



City of Rocklin  Page 3 
Planning Commission Minutes  September 6, 2016  

Commissioner Sloan stated he concurred with his fellow commissioners.  He was originally concerned with 
screening between the project and the residential development.  He is fine with the architecture.  Feels it is 
consistent with the general plan and zoning and is supportive of the project. 
 
Chairman Broadway also stated that the project is consistent with the general plan and zoning. He does have 
concerns about the project being at the entry into our city.  He would like a condition placed on screening the 
canopy structure. 
 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Whitmore and seconded by Commissioner Sloan, Resolution of the Planning 
Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Notice of Exemption (Quick Quack Carwash / DR2015-0016 and 
U2015-0009) was approved by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Whitmore, Sloan, McKenzie, Broadway   
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Martinez 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
 

On a motion by Commissioner Whitmore and seconded by Commissioner Sloan ,Resolution of the Planning 
Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Conditional Use Permit (Quick Quack Carwash / DR2015-0016) was 
approved by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Whitmore, Sloan, McKenzie, Broadway   
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Martinez 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
 
On a motion by Commissioner  Whitmore and seconded by Commissioner Sloan, Resolution of the Planning 
Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Design Review (Quick Quack Carwash / U2015-0009) was approved 
by the following vote as amended: 
 
Add the following condition: 
 
9. Design 

 
a. A screen wall or other structure(s), a minimum three feet in height, shall be installed along the 

project’s Stanford Ranch Road frontage, in front of the vacuum canopy and three adjacent 
parking spaces, to screen the undercarriages and headlights of cars parked in these areas from 
the street, to the extent not otherwise accomplished by landscaping and/or berming, to the 
satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director. 

 
 
AYES:  Whitmore, Sloan, McKenzie, Broadway   
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Martinez 
ABSTAIN: None 
  
 
 

Packet Pg. 6

Agenda Item #4.a.



City of Rocklin  Page 4 
Planning Commission Minutes  September 6, 2016  

8. GRANITE & DOMINGUEZ (DESIGN REVIEW FOR HOMES) 
 DESIGN REVIEW, DR2016-0008 
 
 The subject site is located west of the intersection of Granite Drive and Dominguez Road.  Assessor Parcel 

Numbers (APNs):  045-021-030, 045-021-031, 045-021-046, and 045-021-047.  The property is zoned Planned 
Development Commercial (PD-C), Open Area (O-A), and Planned Development 8.4 units per acre (PD-8.4). The 
General Plan designations are Retail Commercial (R-C), Recreation Conservation (RC), and Medium Density 
Residential (MDR). The proposed Design Review, which is a review of house architecture and individual 
residential lot landscaping, only pertains to the PD-8.4/MDR portion of the site. No nonresidential 
development is proposed at this time. 

 
 A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) has 

tentatively determined that the Mitigated Negative Declaration adopted for the subdivision adequately 
addressed the potential impacts of home construction within the subdivision.  Design review of the 
architecture for the proposed homes does not result in any enhanced or new environmental impacts beyond 
those previously identified for the subdivision itself therefore no additional environmental review is required. 

 
 The applicant and property owner is Gwen Barber, on behalf of JMC Homes. 
 
Nathan Anderson, Associate Planner, presented the staff report. 

 
The Commission had questions for staff regarding: 
 

1. Enhanced elevations and landscaping 
2. Use of different materials and additional stonework 
3. Did the new architectural guidelines play a role in the design of the homes 

 
Applicant, Darrell Hasler, JMC Homes addressed the Commission.  
 
The Commission had questions for the applicant regarding: 
 

1. Additional enhancements to elevations 
2. Opportunity to add more interest and flavor 

 
The hearing was opened to the public for comment.  There being none, the hearing was closed. 
 
Commission Deliberation/Discussion: 
 
Commissioner Whitmore feels the landscaping is consistent.  He stated that his gut reaction is that they are pretty 
plane Jane and needs more articulation or gingerbread.  He would like to have the project come back to the 
Planning Commission.  Wouldn’t be adverse to seeing something even more unique. 
 
Commissioner Mckenzie stated he struggles with this one.  Need to step outside the box especially in the Granite 
Drive area.  A more modern design would be good.  Possibly add faux stone.       
 
Commissioner Sloan asked if this product had been built elsewhere that could be visited.  
 
Darrell Hasler responded to Commissioner Sloan stating that there is a similar project in Roseville off of Foothills 
and Vineyard Rd.  He also gave an explanation of each of the elevations and the materials used. 
 

Packet Pg. 7

Agenda Item #4.a.



City of Rocklin  Page 5 
Planning Commission Minutes  September 6, 2016  

Commissioner Sloan supports Commissioner Whitmore’s suggestion and feels there would be value in bringing 
the project back to the Commission. 
 
Commissioner McKenzie asked staff if they have architectural information on what was approved on the other 
side of Dominguez. He believes it would be helpful for the commission to look at that. 
 
The applicant, Darrell Hasler, stated that time is a concern to them.  They would like to start building by the end of 
the year. 
 
Chairman Broadway appreciates the landscaping.  Feels we are heading toward providing direction to bring the 
project back to the Planning Commission vs. asking the applicant to increase enhancements by a certain 
percentage. 
 
 
On a motion by Commissioner McKenzie and seconded by Commissioner Sloan, Item #8 (Granite & Dominguez 
(Design Review for Homes) Design Review, DR2016-0008) was continued to October 4, 2016 by the following 
vote: 
 
 
AYES:  Whitmore, McKenzie, Sloan 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Martinez 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
 
NON PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
9. Informational Items and Presentations – Draft Architectural and Citywide Guidelines Workshop 

 

Laura Webster and Marc Mondell gave a presentation on the status of the draft Architectural and Citywide 
Guidelines. 
 
The Commission took a 5 minute break at 8:15pm. 
 
Commissioner Broadway commented that he wants to read document before commenting.  He thanked staff for 
all the work done on the document. 
 
Commissioner McKenzie commented that he is more comfortable than he was previously. 
 
Commissioner Sloan stated he is very pleased with the results of this committee and the document. 
 
Commissioner Whitmore stated that it is awesome. 
 
 
10. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners 
  
 City Attorney Recruitment 
 
 

Packet Pg. 8

Agenda Item #4.a.



City of Rocklin  Page 6 
Planning Commission Minutes  September 6, 2016  

11. Reports from City Staff 
 
 Marc informed the Commission that the old ZL Rocklin project has new owners and is pushing to move 

forward quickly. 
 
12. Adjournment 
 
There being no further business brought before the Commission, the meeting was adjourned at  9:21 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Terry Stemple 

 Assistant City Clerk 
 

Approved at the regularly scheduled 
Meeting of  , 2016 
 

 

Packet Pg. 9

Agenda Item #4.a.



City of Rocklin  Page 1 
Planning Commission Minutes  October 4, 2016  

CITY OF ROCKLIN  
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 
October 4, 2016 

Rocklin Council Chambers 
Rocklin Administration Building 

3970 Rocklin Road 
(www. rocklin.ca.us) 

 

 
1. Meeting Called to Order at 6:30 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Whitmore.   
3. Roll Call  
 
 Commissioner Martinez  - excused 

Commissioner Sloan 
 Commissioner McKenzie 
 Commissioner Whitmore    
 
 Others Present: 
 

DeeAnne Gillick, Deputy City Attorney  
Laura Webster, Director of Long Range Planning 
Bret Finning, Planning Services Manager 
Nathan Anderson, Associate Planner 
Marc Mondell, Director of Economic & Community Development 
Dave Palmer, City Engineer 
Shauna Nauman, Assistant Planner 

 Terry Stemple, Planning Commission Secretary 
 
 About  14  others 
 
 
3.5 Election of Officers 
 

Commissioner McKenzie made a motion to appoint Commissioner Sloan as Chairman and Commissioner 
Martinez as Vice Chairman.  Commissioner Whitmore seconded the motion. Commission voted 3/0. 

 
4. Minutes –  None 
5. Correspondence  -  None  
6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items – None 
 
CONSENT ITEMS – None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
7. GRANITE & DOMINGUEZ (DESIGN REVIEW FOR HOMES)  Continued from September 6, 2016 
 DESIGN REVIEW, DR2016-0008 
 
 The subject site is located west of the intersection of Granite Drive and Dominguez Road.  Assessor Parcel 

Numbers (APNs):  045-021-030, 045-021-031, 045-021-046, and 045-021-047.  The property is zoned Planned 

Packet Pg. 10

Agenda Item #4.b.



City of Rocklin  Page 2 
Planning Commission Minutes  October 4, 2016  

Development Commercial (PD-C), Open Area (O-A), and Planned Development 8.4 units per acre (PD-8.4). The 
General Plan designations are Retail Commercial (R-C), Recreation Conservation (RC), and Medium Density 
Residential (MDR). The proposed Design Review, which is a review of house architecture and individual 
residential lot landscaping, only pertains to the PD-8.4/MDR portion of the site. No nonresidential 
development is proposed at this time. 

 
 A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) has 

tentatively determined that the Mitigated Negative Declaration adopted for the subdivision adequately 
addressed the potential impacts of home construction within the subdivision.  Design review of the 
architecture for the proposed homes does not result in any enhanced or new environmental impacts beyond 
those previously identified for the subdivision itself therefore no additional environmental review is required. 

 
 The applicant and property owner is Gwen Barber, on behalf of JMC Homes. 
 
Nathan Anderson, Associate Planner, presented the staff report. 

The Commission had no questions for staff. 
 
Applicant, Chris Glenn, JMC Homes, addressed the Commission and stated he didn’t have much to add.  Nate did a 
great job presenting the redesigned elevations.  He mentioned that a lot of attention was paid to the Spanish style 
elevations. 
 
The Commission had no questions for the applicant. 
 
The hearing was opened to the public for comment.  There being none, the hearing was closed. 
 
Commission Deliberation/Discussion: 
 
Commissioner McKenzie thanked the applicant for working with staff and listening to the Planning Commission’s 
concerns.  He supports the new proposal. 
 
Commissioner Whitmore also thanked the applicant.  Stated that the new proposal is a vast improvement, 
especially the Spanish elevation.  He supports the new proposal. 
 
Chairman Sloan, mirrored the other commissioner’s comments and stated that it is a vast improvement.  He 
supports the new proposal. 
 
 
On a motion by Commissioner McKenzie and seconded by Commissioner Whitmore Resolution of the Planning 
Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Design Review (Granite & Dominguez Subdivision / DR-2016-08) 
was approved by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  McKenzie, Whitmore, Sloan  
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Martinez 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
  

Packet Pg. 11

Agenda Item #4.b.



City of Rocklin  Page 3 
Planning Commission Minutes  October 4, 2016  

 
9. FIVE STAR GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT (Area 3) 

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT, PDG2016-0003 
 
This application is a request for approval of a General Development Plan Amendment (zoning text 
amendment) to change liquor stores from a prohibited to a permitted land use. (Five Star General 
Development Plan Ordinance 704) The subject site is located on the southwest corner of Fairway Drive and 
Sunset Boulevard.  APN 371-120-001. The property is zoned Planned Development Commercial (PD-C).  The 
General Plan designation is Retail Commercial (R-C). 
 
A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 
15061 (b) (3) – general rule of no potential for causing significant effect – has tentatively identified a 
Categorical Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review for this project. 
 
The applicant is Akmal Zadran and the property owners are Tim and Cyndi Peach. 

 

Nathan Anderson, Associate Planner, presented the staff report. 
 
The Commission had questions for staff regarding: 
 

1. Type 20 liquor license vs. a type 21 liquor license 
2. Is changing the zoning for all 6 parcels the only option 
3. Why  were liquor stores prohibited previously 

 
Applicant, Akmal Zadarm, addressed the Commission stating he would be happy to answer any questions. 
 
The Commission had no questions for the applicant. 
 
The hearing was opened to the public for comment.   
 

1. Kathy Palmerton, neighborhood resident, spoke in opposition of the zoning change and offered some 
background as to why the current regulations were written as they are. 

2. John Hooper, neighborhood resident, also spoke in opposition  
3. Jeremy Burry, spoke in support of the zoning change. 

 
There being no further comments, the hearing was closed. 
 
Commission Deliberation/Discussion: 
 

Commissioner Whitmore stated he is concerned about having to zone all 6 parcels which would technically allow 
the other businesses to do the same. He feels that this area is different than other nearby commercial zones due 
to the amount of adjacent single family residential development. He also felt the residents, who signed the 
petition in favor of the change, didn’t really understand the proposal as the petition was worded. 
 
Commissioner McKenzie made a suggestion to make the sale of liquor only allowed ancillary to selling other goods 
or in conjunction with a primary use such as a restaurant.  Chairman Sloan stated he has a hard time supporting 
the project because the surrounding area is mostly residential and that there are plenty of opportunities to 
purchase liquor very nearby.  There would be no added value to the residents.  
 

Packet Pg. 12

Agenda Item #4.b.



City of Rocklin  Page 4 
Planning Commission Minutes  October 4, 2016  

Commissioner Whitmore thanked Commissioner McKenzie for thinking outside the box; however he is not sure he 
can support the project. 

Chairman Sloan stated he also appreciates Commissioner McKenzie’s thoughts.  He suggested that they could 
possibly continue the project to a date after a new Planning Commissioner is appointed so there would be a full 
commission.  He asked Interim City Attorney, DeeAnne Gillick what the applicant’s options would be.   

DeeAnne stated that whichever way the vote goes, the applicant would be able to go to the council either by 
recommendation from the Planning Commission or appeal.  The applicant could also choose to continue to a 
future date. 

Marc Mondell, Economic & Community Development Director made a suggestion that the project could come 
back changed to include a conditional use permit. 

Chairman Sloan asked the applicant to come to the lecturn and tell them what his choice would be. 

Mr. Zadram stated that he would like to wait for a full commission. 

On a motion by Commissioner Whitmore and seconded by Commissioner McKenzie, Item #9 (Five Star General 
Development Plan Amendment/PDG2016-0003) was continued to November 15, 2016 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Whitmore, McKenzie, Sloan 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Martinez 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
NON PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
10. Informational Items and Presentations – None 
11. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners 
 

• Status of Design Guidelines 
o Marc Mondell explained that the Committee would be meeting on October 17th to review any 

comments and suggested changes. 
 
12. Reports from City Staff -  None 
13. Adjournment 
 
There being no further business brought before the Commission, the meeting was adjourned at  7:20 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Terry Stemple 

 Assistant City Clerk 
 

Approved at the regularly scheduled 
Meeting of  , 2016 
 

Packet Pg. 13

Agenda Item #4.b.



 
City of Rocklin Community Development Department 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Planning Commission 
STAFF  REPORT 

 
Pine Street Parcel Map 

Tentative Parcel Map, DL2016-0004 
 

October 18, 2016 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Proposal/Recommendation 
 
This application is a request for approval of tentative parcel map entitlement to allow 
the subdivision of an approximately 13,600 square foot parcel into two separate parcels. 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the following, subject to the 
draft conditions of approval: 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
NOTICE OF EXEMPTION (Pine Street Tentative Parcel Map / DL2016-0004) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP (Pine Street Tentative Parcel Map / DL2016-0004) 
 
Owner/Applicant 
 
The owner is Alma Colon. The applicant is Carlos Colon.  
 
Location 
 
The subject property is located at 4105 Pine Street.  APN# 010-098-005. 
 
Site Characteristics 
 
The approximately 0.31 gross-acre project site is located at the northeastern corner of 
Pine Street and Grove Street (see Figure 1). The property has remained vacant until May 
of this year when plans to construct a single-family home were approved by the Building 
Department. Construction of a 2,294 square foot home has since commenced. The 
house was specifically located on the westerly most portion of the lot (proposed Parcel 

Packet Pg. 14

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Pine Street Parcel Map / DL2016-0004 
October 18, 2016 
Page 2 
 
1) to allow for sufficient area to subdivide the property and build another home on the 
eastern portion (proposed Parcel 2).  
 

Figure 1 – Vicinity Map 

 
 
The property contains several trees, including oak, sycamore, and olive. As part of the 
project, the applicant has proposed to remove the sycamore and olive trees, which 
would block access to proposed Parcel 2. No oaks have been proposed for removal.  
 
The property is surrounded on all sides by an existing single-family neighborhood, with 
parcels consistent in size with the proposed parcel split. The zoning and land use 
designations of the project site, as well as surrounding properties, are included as Table 
1.  
 

Table 1 – Surrounding Uses 

 General Plan Zoning Existing Land Use 

Project 
Site: 

Medium Density 
Residential 
(MDR) 

Single Family 
Residential 5,000 
square foot minimum 
lot size (R1-5) 

Historically vacant. 
Construction of a single-family 
residence currently ongoing 

North: MDR R1-5 Existing single-family homes 
South: MDR R1-5 Existing single family homes 
East: MDR R1-5 Existing single family homes 
West: MDR R1-5 Existing single family homes 

 

Packet Pg. 15

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Pine Street Parcel Map / DL2016-0004 
October 18, 2016 
Page 3 
 
Tentative Parcel Map 
 
The proposed parcel map would allow for the division of a 13,600 square foot property 
into two single-family residential lots. Resultant Parcel 1, which is currently being 
developed with a single-family home, would be 8,087 square feet and resultant Parcel 2, 
which is currently vacant, would be 5,520 square feet. The proposed Tentative Parcel 
Map, which shows the location of the home currently under construction, is included as 
Figure 2.  
 
All required street improvements have been installed and all utilities are already 
provided to the site and have sufficient capacity to serve the additional lots.  
 

Figure 2 – Proposed Tentative Parcel Map 

 
 
General Plan and Zoning Compliance 
 
The project site is designated in the City's General Plan as Medium Density Residential 
(MDR), which is intended to provide areas for single-family homes on urban lots. 
 

Packet Pg. 16

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Pine Street Parcel Map / DL2016-0004 
October 18, 2016 
Page 4 
 
The zoning of the project site is Single-Family Residential 5,000 square foot minimum lot 
size (R1-5), which is intended to allow for the development of single-family homes on 
lots that are 5,000 square feet or larger in area. 
 
This tentative parcel map application would create two single-family residential lots, 
with Parcel 1 sized at approximately 8,087 square feet and Parcel 2 sized at 5,520 
square feet. The proposed lot sizes are consistent with the minimum requirements of 
the R1-5 zoning district and as such, the project is consistent with the applicable general 
plan and zoning.  
 
Development Standards Compliance 
 
Chapter 17.10 of the Municipal Code provides development standards for parcels within 
the R1-5 zoning district. A comparison chart of the required standards and how they 
apply to the proposed project has been included as Table 2.  
 

Table 2 – Development Standard Consistency 

Requirement Parcel 1 (Proposed) Parcel 2 (Proposed) Complies? 

Min. Lot Area:  5,000 s.f. 8,087 s.f. 5,520 s.f. Yes 

Min. Lot Width:  50 feet 79.4 feet 81.6 feet Yes 

Max. Lot Coverage:  35% 28% 34%* Yes 

*Based on construction of 1,880 s.f. structure; See Figure 3 
 
  
According to Section 17.08.020 of the Municipal Code, the minimum square footage of a 
single-family residence shall be no less than one thousand fifty (1,050) square feet. In 
order to ensure that the resultant parcels could accommodate this requirement, the 
applicant has submitted a lot fit map, which has been included as Figure 3. The figure 
shows that, in addition to the 2,294 square foot single-family home which has already 
been permitted and is in the process of being constructed on Parcel 1, Parcel 2 has been 
sized to accommodate a 1,880 square foot home, which would comply with all setback 
and lot coverage requirements.  
 

Packet Pg. 17

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Pine Street Parcel Map / DL2016-0004 
October 18, 2016 
Page 5 
 

Figure 3 – Lot Fit Map 

 
 
Environmental Determination 
 
The City of Rocklin’s Environmental Coordinator has reviewed the proposed project and 
determined that it is categorically exempt from review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15315 - Minor Land Divisions. For a more 
in-depth discussion of the environmental evaluation and conclusion, please refer to the 
Notice of Exemption attached to the Resolution. 
 
Land Use Compatibility 
 
The two single-family residential lots that would be created by the approval of this 
application would be similar in size and have the same land use as the surrounding 
properties throughout the existing residential neighborhood. Therefore, the proposed 
project is compatible with adjacent land uses and development of the area. 
 
Given the above, staff does not believe that there would be any significant impact to the 
surrounding neighborhood resulting from the approval of the proposed parcel map. 
Staff therefore recommends that the Planning Commission approve the project, subject 
to findings and conditions of approval. 
 
Prepared by Nathan Anderson, Associate Planner 

Packet Pg. 18

Agenda Item #7.



  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 

APPROVING  A NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
Pine Street Tentative Parcel Map (Lot 1, Block C, Delanos Addition)/DL2016-0004  

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Rocklin’s Environmental Coordinator has reviewed the Pine Street 
Tentative Parcel Map (Lot 1, Block C, Delanos Addition)/DL2016-0004 project (“Project”) and 
determined that it is exempt from review under the California Environmental Quality Act 
pursuant to California Code of Regulations Section 15315, Minor Land Divisions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a Notice of Exemption has been prepared for the Project. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. Based on the review and determination of the Environmental 

Coordinator, the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds that the Project is exempt 
from review under the California Environmental Quality Act. 

 
Section 2. A Notice of Exemption is approved for the Project. 
 
Section 3. Upon approval of the Project by the Planning Commission, the 

Environmental Coordinator may file the Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk of Placer 
County and, if the Project requires a discretionary approval from any state agency, with the 
State Office of Planning and Research, pursuant to the provisions of Section 21152(b) of the 
Public Resources Code and the State EIR Guidelines adopted pursuant thereto. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of _______, 2016, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:   
NOES:  Commissioners:   
ABSENT: Commissioners:   
ABSTAIN: Commissioners:   
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary 
 
 

 
 

Packet Pg. 19

Agenda Item #7.a.



  
 

 
NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 

 
TO:   County Clerk, County of Placer  FROM: City of Rocklin 
 2954 Richardson Blvd.    ECD Department 
 Auburn, CA  95604-5228    3970 Rocklin Road 
        Rocklin, CA 95677 
 
Project Title: Pine Street Tentative Parcel Map (Lot 1, Block C, Delanos Addition)/DL2016-0004 
Project Location - Specific: The northeast corner of Pine and Grove Streets. APN 010-098-
005. 
Project Location - City: Rocklin, CA;  County:  Placer 
Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project:  This application is a request for 
approval of a Tentative Parcel Map to allow the division of a 13,607 square foot parcel into two 
parcels. Parcel 1 is proposed at 8,807 square feet, and Parcel 2 at 5,520 square feet. A new 
2,294 square foot residence with a 443 square foot attached garage is currently under 
construction on proposed Parcel 1. 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project:   
City of Rocklin City Council 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project 
The applicant is Carlos Colon, 4105 Pine Street, Rocklin, CA 95677 (916) 533-3409. 
 
Exempt Status (Check one) 

_X_ Categorical Exemption (California Code of Regulations Sec. 153000 et seq): Section 
15315 - Minor Land Divisions. 

 
Reasons why the project is exempt.  The project involves the division of land into two parcels, 
as further described above.  Class 15 exemptions consist of the division of property in urbanized 
areas zoned for residential, commercial, or industrial use into four or fewer parcels when the 
division is in conformance with the General Plan and zoning, no variances or exceptions are 
required, all services and access to the proposed parcels to local standards are available, the 
parcel was not involved in a division of a larger parcel within the previous 2 years, and the 
parcel does not have an average slope greater than 20 percent. The project as proposed is 
consistent with the exemption description noted above and is exempt pursuant to Class 15 of 
the CEQA Guidelines.  
 
Contact Person:  Marc Mondell, Economic and Community Development Department Director 
 
Date received for Filing: _________________________________________________________  
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Signature:  Marc Mondell, Economic and Community Development Department Director 
. 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\DavidM\EXEMPTIONS\Pine Street Tentative Parcel Map NOE and Reso 15315 (2016) .docx 

Packet Pg. 20

Agenda Item #7.a.



RESOLUTION NO. PC- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN  
APPROVING A TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP  

(Pine Street Tentative Parcel Map / DL2016-0004) 
 
 

 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and determines 
that: 
 

A. Tentative Parcel Map (DL2016-0004) allows the subdivision of an approximately 
13.59 acre parcel into four residential lots and a remainder parcel. 
 

B. A Categorical Exemption of environmental impacts has been approved for this 
project via Planning Commission Resolution No. PC-_____________. 
 

C. The Planning Commission has considered the effect of the approval of this 
subdivision on the housing needs of the region, and has balanced those needs against the 
public service needs of its residents and available fiscal and environmental resources. 

 
D. The proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for its design and 

improvement, is consistent with the zoning classification on the property. 
 
E. The proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for its design and 

improvement, is consistent with the objectives, policies, general land uses and programs in the 
City of Rocklin's General Plan. 

 
F. The site is physically suitable for the proposed type and density of development. 
 
G. The design of the subdivision and the proposed improvements are not likely to 

cause substantial environmental damage, nor will they substantially and avoidably injure fish or 
wildlife or their habitat. 

 
H. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements will not cause serious 

public health problems. 
 
I. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements will not conflict with 

easements acquired by the public at large for access through or use of the property within the 
proposed subdivision. 

 

Packet Pg. 21

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 2 of  
Reso No. 

J. The design of the subdivision provides, to the extent feasible, for future passive 
or natural heating and cooling opportunities. 

 
 Section 2.  The tentative parcel map for a property on Pine Street (DL2016-0004), as 
depicted in Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, is hereby 
approved, subject to the conditions listed below. The approved Exhibit A shall govern the 
design and construction of the project. Any condition directly addressing an element 
incorporated into Exhibit A shall be controlling and shall modify Exhibit A.  All other plans, 
specifications, details, and information contained within Exhibit A shall be specifically applicable 
to the project and shall be construed as if directly stated within the conditions for approval.  
Unless otherwise expressly stated, the applicant / developer shall be solely responsible for 
satisfying each condition, and each of these conditions must be satisfied prior to or 
concurrently with the submittal of the final map with the City Engineer.  The agency and / or 
City department(s) responsible for ensuring implementation of each condition is indicated in 
parenthesis with each condition. 
 
A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 

The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  Pursuant to Government 
Code §66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, and 
a description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. 

The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from the date 
of approval of the project, has begun.  If the applicant fails to file a protest regarding any of 
the fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements or other exaction contained in 
this notice, complying with all the requirements of Government Code §66020, the 
applicant will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 
 

B. Conditions 
 

1. Utilities 
 

a. Water – Water service shall be provided to the subdivision from Placer 
County Water Agency (PCWA) in compliance with all applicable PCWA 
standards and requirements.  PCWA shall verify ability to serve the 
subdivision by signing off on the subdivision improvement plans.  All 
necessary easements shall be shown and offered (or Irrevocable Offer of 
Dedication provided) on or with the final map.  All necessary improvements 
shall be included on the subdivision improvement plans. (PCWA 
ENGINEERING) 
 

b. Sewer – Sewer service shall be provided to the subdivision from South Placer 
Municipal Utility District (SPMUD) in compliance with all applicable SPMUD 

Packet Pg. 22

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 3 of  
Reso No. 

standards and requirements.  SPMUD shall verify ability to serve the 
subdivision by signing off on the subdivision improvement plans.  All 
necessary easements shall be shown and offered (or Irrevocable Offer of 
Dedication provided) on or with the final map.  All improvements shall be 
included on the subdivision improvement plans. (SPMUD, ENGINEERING) 

 
c. Telephone, Gas, and Electricity – Telephone, gas and electrical service shall 

be provided to the subdivision from Surewest Communications / Pacific Bell, 
and Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E). (ENGINEERING) 

 
d. Postal Service – Mailbox locations shall be determined by the local 

postmaster.  A letter from the local postmaster verifying all requirements 
have been met shall be filed with the City Engineer. (ENGINEERING). 

 
2. Schools 

 
a. Financing:  The following conditions shall be satisfied to mitigate the impact 

of the proposed development on school facilities (ROCKLIN UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT, BUILDING): 
 

i. At the time of issuance of a building permit, the developer shall pay 
to the Rocklin Unified School District all fees required under 
Education Code section 17620 and Government Code Section 65995, 
to the satisfaction of the Rocklin Unified School District. 
 

3. Parks  
 

a. Park fees shall be paid as required by Rocklin Municipal Code Chapter 17.71 
and Chapter 16.28 for Parcel 2. The amount of the fee per dwelling unit is 
$1,985.00.  (ENGINEERING)  
 

4. Validity 
 

This entitlement shall expire two years from the date of approval unless prior to that 
date a final map has been issued or a time extension has been granted. (PLANNING) 

 

  

Packet Pg. 23

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 4 of  
Reso No. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this      day of      ,          , by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  

NOES:  Commissioners: 

ABSENT: Commissioners: 

ABSTAIN: Commissioners: 

 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary  
 
 

Packet Pg. 24

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
To Reso No. 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Available at the Community Development Department, Planning Division 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 25

Agenda Item #7.b.



P
acket P

g. 2
6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.

stemple
A

stemple
Typewritten Text
DL2016-0004



 
City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Planning Commission 
STAFF REPORT 

 
General Plan Update: Placer County 

 2016 Local Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update, GPA2016-0005 
 

October 18, 2016 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Documents to facilitate Planning Commission action on the following items have been 
provided:  
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL TO AMEND THE CITY OF ROCKLIN GENERAL 
PLAN COMMUNITY SAFETY ELEMENT TO INCORPORATE BY REFERENCE THE PLACER 
COUNTY 2016 LOCAL MULTI-HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN (LHMP) UPDATE 
 
Proposal Request 
This proposal will amend the City of Rocklin General Plan Community Safety Element to 
be consistent with the requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA-2000). 

Location 
The proposed amendment to the General Plan will apply Citywide.  

Owner/Applicant 
The property owners are multiple and the applicant is the City of Rocklin. 
 
Background 
Congress adopted the Disaster Mitigation Act 2000 (DMA-2000) on October 31, 2000 as 
PL106-390. Its emphasis is on creating an ongoing, community-wide public/government 
planning process ultimately resulting in local governing boards, including Rocklin City 
Council, formally adopting a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP). 
 
The LHMP delineates hazards and assesses risks of a variety of natural hazards that 
could potentially impact Placer County. Additionally, the LHMP includes a review of each 
jurisdiction’s existing hazard reduction capabilities and recommends actions/projects to 
further reduce future vulnerability. Projects, measures, and policies contained in a 
LHMP are designed and recommended based on the nexus between hazard and values 

Packet Pg. 27

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
General Plan Update: DMA-2000 Update 
October 18, 2016 
Page 2 
 
at risk. Timely and efficient plan implementation will reduce risk in all Placer County 
communities. 
 
As specified by DMA-2000, local governments are required to update their LHMP every 
five years in order to remain eligible for future federal disaster mitigation funding. For 
the 2016 LHMP update project, Placer County Office of Emergency Services (PCOES) 
received a FEMA grant in May 2014 and hired Foster Morrison Consulting in early April 
of 2015. Following a similar process as required by FEMA for the 2005 and 2010 LHMPs, 
the process began with reconvening of the Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee 
(HMPC) Working Group followed by conducting a publicly noticed kick-off meeting in 
late April 2015. Seven other working meetings, all publicly noticed, were held in 
subsequent months to conduct the LHMP planning and updating process. The HMPC 
Working Group consisted of representatives from select County Departments, the Cities 
of Colfax, Auburn, Lincoln, and Rocklin, the Town of Loomis, and participating Fire 
Districts and Special Districts with the County.  
 
Key 2016 Placer County LHMP Highlights include: 

•  Development of the LHMP update in accordance with the National Flood 
Insurance Program (NFIP) Community Rating System (CRS) Activity 510 
requirements to enhance the floodplain management programs of the County 
and Cities.  

• Participation of 22 jurisdictions including the County, five incorporated 
communities and 16 special districts. 

• An updated hazard risk assessment for 18 hazards, which includes flood, wildfire, 
drought, earthquake, dam failures, seiche, severe storms, and agricultural 
hazards as priority hazards of concern to the County. 

• An assessment of the impact of climate change on identified hazards of concern. 
• Development of an updated mitigation strategy for the County and all 

participating jurisdictions including new plan goals and objectives and the 
identification of 135 mitigations actions to address identified hazards. 

Both the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) and FEMA 
have reviewed and approved the 2016 Placer County LHMP and adoption of the plan 
update must be completed by June 13, 2017.  Failure to adopt the update may cause 
problems in securing grant funding for future mitigation efforts. 

 
Environmental Determination 
The City of Rocklin’s Environmental Coordinator has reviewed the General Plan 
Amendment: Placer County 2016 Local Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update 
project and has determined that the project as proposed will not cause a direct physical 
change in the environment, nor a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change to the 
environment.  The adoption of the LHMP therefore does not constitute the approval of 
a project under California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and it is considered exempt 

Packet Pg. 28

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
General Plan Update: DMA-2000 Update 
October 18, 2016 
Page 3 
 
from the CEQA (Public Resources Code sections 15060 (c) (2) (3); 15061 (b) (3) and 
15378 (a). 
 
General Plan Amendment/Evaluation 

As required by DMA-2000, the Placer County 2016 Local Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 
(LHMP) Update is incorporated by reference into the City of Rocklin General Plan 
Community Safety Element.  This action allows the City to remain eligible for federal 
disaster mitigation funding should the City wish to pursue such funding in the future.   
 
The 2016 LHMP Update recognizes the City’s on-going mitigation efforts such as the 
weed abatement program, the drainage maintenance program and the managed 
grazing program.  Other potential mitigation actions identified in the 2016 LHMP Update 
include the following: 

• Integrate Local Hazard Mitigation Plan into Safety Element of the General Plan 
• Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Floodplain/Community Rating 

System (CRS) 
• Creek Channel and Drainage Way Clearing and Maintenance 
• High Water Use Landscape and Irrigation Retrofit 
• Open Space Fire Prevention and Vegetation Management Prescribed Grazing 
• GIS Based Mapping of Pertinent Information that can be used by All Agencies in 

the Development of Plans and During Emergency Incidents 
 

While the identification of these mitigation actions does not commit the City to their 
implementation, the value of these mitigation actions is recognized by the City and as a 
result many of them are also on-going.  As a result of being listed in the 2016 LHMP 
Update, these mitigation actions are now eligible for future federal disaster mitigation 
funding should such funds become available and should the City wish to pursue such 
funding. 
 
 
Attachment A – Rocklin portion of the LHMP.  The link for the complete LHMP 
is, http://www.placer.ca.gov/departments/ceo/emergency/local-hazard-mitigation-plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 29

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
General Plan Update: DMA-2000 Update 
October 18, 2016 
Page 4 

ATTACHMENT A 

PLACER COUNTY LOCAL MULTI-HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
ANNEX E -CITY OF  ROCKLIN 

Packet Pg. 30

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-1 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Annex E City of Rocklin 

E.1 Introduction 

This Annex details the hazard mitigation planning elements specific to the City of Rocklin, a participating 
jurisdiction to the Placer County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update.  This Annex is not 
intended to be a standalone document, but appends to and supplements the information contained in the 
base plan document.  As such, all sections of the base plan, including the planning process and other 
procedural requirements apply to and were met by the City.  This Annex provides additional information 
specific to the City of Rocklin, with a focus on providing additional details on the risk assessment and 
mitigation strategy for this community. 

E.2 Planning Process 

As described above, the City of Rocklin followed the planning process detailed in Section 3 of the base 
plan.  In addition to providing representation on the Placer County Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee 
(HMPC), the City formulated their own internal planning team to support the broader planning process 
requirements.  Internal planning participants, their positions, and how they participated in the planning 
process are shown in Table E-1. Additional details on plan participation and City representatives are 
included in Appendix A.   

Table E-1 City of Rocklin Planning Team 

Name Position/Title How Participated 

David Mohlenbrok Environmental 
Services Manager 

Attended planning meetings. Provided edits and updates to past 
annex.  Provided updated hazard identification, vulnerability and 
capability information. Provided updated mitigation projects.  

James Summers City of Rocklin Fire 
Chief (retired) 

Provided future development and capability information. Provided 
editing and review of draft work products. Attended planning 
meetings. 

Kurt Snyder City of Rocklin Fire 
Chief 

Provided future development and capability information. Provided 
editing and review of draft work products. 

Richard Holmes City of Rocklin Fire 
Battalion Chief 

Provided future development and capability information. Provided 
editing and review of draft work products. 

Coordination with other community planning efforts is paramount to the successful implementation of this 
plan.  This Section provides information on how the City integrated the previously-approved 2010 Plan into 
existing planning mechanisms and programs.  Specifically, the City incorporated into or implemented the 
2010 LHMP through other plans and programs shown in Table E-2. 

Packet Pg. 31

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-2 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Table E-2 2010 LHMP Incorporation 

Jurisdiction Planning Mechanism 2010 LHMP Was Incorporated/Implemented In. Details? 

City of Rocklin The previous LHMP was adopted by City Council in May of 2011, but the City did not 
incorporate the plan into other documents.  There were several reasons why this did not 
occur and included, financial constraints of the City resulting in limited planning activities 
over the last five years and lack of consistent and available staff responsible for plan 
implementation.   

City of Rocklin Although not specifically part of City activities, implementation of regional planning efforts 
and associated projects, such as flood planning efforts and projects since 2010 provide a 
direct benefit to the City of Rocklin.   

City of Rocklin The 2010 LHMP was not directly incorporated into 2012 General Plan Update. However, 
the LHMP is considered a supporting document to the General Plan that will be 
incorporated into the Safety Element during the next General Plan update.  

 

E.3 Community Profile 

Figure E-1 displays a map and the location of the City of Rocklin within Placer County.  The Planning 
Team for the City noted that the City of Rocklin is in the process of incorporating the “island” of Placer 
County that is shown in green just south of I-80 into the City limits. 

Packet Pg. 32

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-3 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Figure E-1 City of Rocklin Basemap 

 

Packet Pg. 33

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-4 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

E.3.1. Geography and Climate 

The City of Rocklin is located in the rolling hills of southwestern Placer County at an elevation range of 
150 to 525 feet above sea level. Rocklin encompasses 20 square miles in area and is situated at the junction 
of I-80 and Highway 65, 21 miles northeast of Sacramento and 80 miles northeast of San Francisco. The 
City is on the fringe of the California’s Central Valley, with productive agricultural lands to the west and 
Folsom Lake State Recreation Area and the Sierra Nevada Range to the east. Bordering Rocklin are the 
cities of Lincoln to the north, Roseville to the south, and Loomis to the east. 

The climate in Rocklin is similar to other cities in the Central Valley region, with hot, dry summers and 
moderately wet winters. The average high temperature in July is 98°F and the average low temperature in 
January is 37°F.  Average annual rainfall is 21 inches, with 96 percent of that total (19.7 inches) typically 
falling in the months of October-April. 

E.3.2. History 

Rocklin began as a railroad town with the Central Pacific moving to the area in 1864.  In 1866, a major 
locomotive terminal was established in Rocklin because of its location at the “bottom of the hill.”  
Additionally, the town was a major granite producer for the Sacramento Valley.  In 1893, Rocklin officially 
incorporated with a population of 1,050.  The town bustled with granite production and the commercial 
fruit industries until about 1908 when the Central Pacific decided to move the railroad roundhouse terminal 
to Roseville. 

With soils generally of poor quality, commercial agriculture activities were difficult to support with the 
exception of livestock grazing.  The J.P. Whitney family, a major landholder in the Rocklin from the late 
1850s to 1949, raised sheep and conducted other ranching activities.  Ranching occurred well into the 1950s 
and 1960s in the Rocklin area when increased urbanization and expansion of suburban communities from 
Sacramento to the northeast, along I-80, led to growth of the housing market.  Beginning in the 1980s, the 
low cost of land attracted industry to the region and the expansion of commercial and residential 
development in south Placer County began. 

E.3.3. Economy 

US Census estimates show economic characteristics for the City of Rocklin.  These are shown in Table E-3.  

Table E-3 City of Rocklin Civilian Employed Population 16 years and Over 

Industry Estimated 
Employment 

Percent 

Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting, and mining 169 0.6% 

Construction 1,042 3.9% 

Manufacturing 1,741 6.5% 

Wholesale trade 1,011 3.8% 

Retail trade 3,424 12.8% 

Packet Pg. 34

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-5 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Industry Estimated 
Employment 

Percent 

Transportation and warehousing, and utilities 1,087 4.1% 

Information 782 2.9% 

Finance and insurance, and real estate and rental and leasing 2,654 9.9% 

Professional, scientific, and management, and administrative and waste management 
services 

3,422 12.8% 

Educational services, and health care and social assistance 5,955 22.2% 

Arts, entertainment, and recreation, and accommodation and food services 2,269 8.5% 

Other services, except public administration 1,130 4.2% 

Public administration 2,139 8.0% 
Source:  US Census Bureau American Community Survey 2009-2013 Estimates 

E.3.4. Population 

The California Department of Finance estimated the January 1, 2014 total population for the City of Rocklin 
was 59,672.  

E.4 Hazard Identification and Summary 

Rocklin’s planning team identified the hazards that affect the City and summarized their frequency of 
occurrence, spatial extent, potential magnitude, and significance specific to Rocklin (see Table E-4).  In the 
context of the plan’s planning area, there are no hazards that are unique to Rocklin. 

  

Packet Pg. 35

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-6 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Table E-4 City of Rocklin—Hazard Summaries 

Hazard 
Geographic 
Extent 

Probability of 
Future Occurrences 

Magnitude/ 
Severity Significance 

Agricultural Hazards Limited Unlikely Negligible Low 

Avalanche Limited Unlikely Negligible Low 

Dam Failure Limited Occasional Negligible Low 

Drought and Water Shortage Extensive Highly Likely Critical Low 

Earthquake Significant Occasional Limited Low 

Flood:  100/500 year Significant Occasional Limited Low 

Flood:  Localized Stormwater Flooding Limited Likely Limited Medium 

Landslides and Debris Flows Limited Unlikely Limited Low 

Levee Failure Limited Unlikely Limited Low 

Seiche (Lake Tsunami) Limited Unlikely Limited Low 

Severe Weather:  Extreme Heat Limited Likely Limited Medium 

Severe Weather:  Freeze and Snow Limited Likely Limited Medium 

Severe Weather:  Fog and Freezing Fog Extensive Likely Limited Low 

Severe Weather:  Heavy Rains and 
Storms (Thunderstorms/Hail, 
Lightning/Wind/Tornadoes) 

Extensive Likely Critical Medium 

Soil Bank Erosion Limited Unlikely Limited Low 

Subsidence Limited Unlikely Limited Low 

Volcano Limited Unlikely Negligible Low 

Wildfire Significant Highly Likely Limited Medium 

Hazardous Materials Transport Significant Likely Critical Medium 

Geographic Extent 
Limited: Less than 10% of planning area 
Significant: 10-50% of planning area 
Extensive: 50-100% of planning area  
Probability of Future Occurrences 
Highly Likely: Near 100% chance of 
occurrence in next year, or happens every year. 
Likely: Between 10 and 100% chance of 
occurrence in next year, or has a recurrence 
interval of 10 years or less.  
Occasional: Between 1 and 10% chance of 
occurrence in the next year, or has a 
recurrence interval of 11 to 100 years. 
Unlikely: Less than 1% chance of occurrence 
in next 100 years, or has a recurrence interval 
of greater than every 100 years. 

Magnitude/Severity 
Catastrophic—More than 50 percent of property severely damaged; 
shutdown of facilities for more than 30 days; and/or multiple deaths 
Critical—25-50 percent of property severely damaged; shutdown of 
facilities for at least two weeks; and/or injuries and/or illnesses result 
in permanent disability 
Limited—10-25 percent of property severely damaged; shutdown of 
facilities for more than a week; and/or injuries/illnesses treatable do 
not result in permanent disability 
Negligible—Less than 10 percent of property severely damaged, 
shutdown of facilities and services for less than 24 hours; and/or 
injuries/illnesses treatable with first aid 
Significance  
Low: minimal potential impact 
Medium: moderate potential impact 
High: widespread potential impact 

 

Packet Pg. 36

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-7 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

E.5 Vulnerability Assessment 

The intent of this section is to assess Rocklin’s vulnerability separate from that of the planning area as a 
whole, which has already been assessed in Section 4.3 Vulnerability Assessment in the main plan.  This 
vulnerability assessment analyzes the population, property, and other assets at risk to hazards ranked of 
medium or high significance that may vary from other parts of the planning area.  In addition, although 
ranked as low significance by the community, the 100-year flood hazard is also included in the below 
analysis.  For more information about how hazards affect the County as a whole, see Chapter 4 Risk 
Assessment in the main plan. 

E.5.1. Assets at Risk  

This section identifies Rocklin’s assets at risk, including values at risk, critical facilities and infrastructure, 
historic assets, and growth and development trends. 

Values at Risk 

The following data from the Placer County Assessor’s Office is based on the 2015 Assessor’s data.  The 
methodology used to derive property values is the same as in Section 4.3.1 of the base plan.  This data 
should only be used as a guideline to overall values in the County, as the information has some limitations.  
The most significant limitation is created by Proposition 13.  Instead of adjusting property values annually, 
the values are not adjusted or assessed at fair market value until a property transfer occurs.  As a result, 
overall value information is most likely low and does not reflect current market value of properties within 
the County.  It is also important to note, in the event of a disaster, it is generally the value of the 
infrastructure or improvements to the land that is of concern or at risk.  Generally, the land itself is not a 
loss.  Table E-5 shows the 2015 Assessor’s values (e.g., the values at risk) broken down by property type 
for the City of Rocklin. 

Table E-5 City of Rocklin – Total Assets at Risk by Property Use 

Property Use Parcels 
Total Land 
Value 

Improved Parcel 
Count 

Improved 
Structure Value Total Value 

Agricultural 4 $1,946,450 0 0  $1,946,450  

Commercial 1513 $395,275,204 457 $523,142,972  $918,418,176  

Industrial 240 $58,893,048 153 $125,689,906  $184,582,954  

Institutional 67 $17,218,965 22 $72,982,008  $90,200,973  

Natural/Open 102 $,2993,739 6 $3,123,464  $6,117,203  

Residential 18024 $1,621,943,518 17,373 $4,323,097,708  $5,945,041,226  

Total  19,950   $2,098,270,924  18,011 $5,048,036,058   $7,146,306,982  
Source:  Placer County 2015 Parcel/Assessor’s Data  

Packet Pg. 37

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-8 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Critical Facilities and Infrastructure 

For purposes of this plan, a critical facility is defined as:  

Any facility, including without limitation, a structure, infrastructure, property, equipment or service, that if 
adversely affected during a hazard event may result in severe consequences to public health and safety or interrupt 
essential services and operations for the community at any time before, during and after the hazard event. 

This definition was refined by separating out three classes of critical facilities as further described in Section 
4.3.1 of the base plan.   

An inventory of critical facilities in the City of Rocklin from Placer County GIS is shown on Figure E-2 
and detailed in Table E-6.  Details of critical facility definition, type, name, address, and jurisdiction by 
hazard zone are listed in Appendix F. 

Packet Pg. 38

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-9 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Figure E-2 City of Rocklin – Critical Facilities 

 

Packet Pg. 39

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-10 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Table E-6 City of Rocklin – Critical Facilities Inventory 

Critical Facility Category Facility Type Facility Count 

Class 1 Communication Transmission Sites 1 

Dispatch Center 1 

Class 2 Emergency Operation Center 1 

Fire Station 3 

Police Station 1 

Class 3 Hall 2 

Hazardous Materials Facility 1 

School 19 

Water Treatment Plant 1 

Total City of Rocklin  30 
Source: Placer County GIS 

Natural Resources  

The City of Rocklin has a variety of habitat types that include urban, annual grasslands, seasonal wetlands, 
riparian zones, and oak savannah woodlands.  These environments support plant and wildlife that include 
protected and special status species listed in the Table E-7. 

Table E-7 City of Rocklin’s Protected and Special Status Species 

Common Name Reporting 
Agency 

Protection 
Status 

Habitat 

Birds 

Aleutian Canada goose USFWS FD Uses pastures and grain fields along the coasts of 
Oregon and California, and in California’s Central 
Valley. Nest on maritime islands. 

American peregrine falcon USFWS FD; CE Wetlands, woodlands, forested areas, agricultural areas, 
and coastal habitats. Nesting sites on ledges. 

Bank swallow USFWS CT Riparian, lacustrine, and coastal areas with vertical 
banks, bluffs, and cliffs with sandy soil. Nest in 
colonies in burrows dug into riverbanks. 

Black tern USFWS FSC; SC Spring and summer in fresh emergent wetlands while 
breeding. Common on bays, salt ponds, river mouths 
and pelagic waters in spring and fall. 

Burrowing owl CNNDB/USFWS SC, S2 Open grassland and desert habitats, in open parts of 
pinyon-juniper and ponderosa pine habitats. Uses 
rodent or other burrows for cover and nesting. 

Cooper’s hawk GL-DEIR SC Oak woodlands, riparian or other forest habitat near 
water 

Packet Pg. 40

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-11 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Common Name Reporting 
Agency 

Protection 
Status 

Habitat 

Ferruginous hawk USFWS FSC; SC Open grasslands, sagebrush flats, desert scrub, low 
foothills surrounding valleys and fringes of pinyon-
juniper habitats. Roosts in open area, usually in a lone 
tree or pole. 

Golden eagle GL-DEIR SC, Fully 
Protected 

Rolling hills, mountain areas, sage-juniper flats and 
deserts. 

Grasshopper sparrow USFWS FSC Tall and mixed grassland habitats including native 
prairies, hayfields, pastures, and fallow fields. 

Greater sandhill crane USFWS CT Wet meadows. Tend to nest in open habitat or in the 
cover of bulrush and bur reed. 

Lawrence’s goldfinch USFWS FSC Open oak woodlands, mesquite, and riparian thickets. 

Lewis’ woodpecker USFWS FSC Open pine-oak woodlands, coniferous forests, and 
riparian woodlands. Associated with burned and 
logged woodlands. 

Little willow flycatcher USFWS CE Wet meadows and montane riparian habitats with 
extensive willow thickets. 

Loggerhead shrike USFWS FSC; SC Open habitats with scattered shrubs, trees, utility lines 
or other perches. Lowlands and foothills throughout 
California. 

Long-billed curlew USFWS FSC; SC Wet meadow habitat, Coastal estuaries, upland 
herbaceous areas, and croplands. 

Mountain plover USFWS FPT; SC Short grasslands and plowed fields of the Central 
Valley. 

Sharp-shinned hawk GL-DEIR SC Deciduous riparian forest at mid-elevation, conifer 
forest, and oak woodlands. 

Short-eared owl USFWS FSC; SC Grasslands, prairies, dunes, meadows, irrigated lands 
and saline and fresh emergent wetlands. Nests in 
depression in dry ground concealed in vegetation. 

Swainson’s hawk CNNDB/USFWS CT Open desert, grassland, or cropland with scattered, 
large trees or small groves. 

Tricolored blackbird CNNDB/USFWS SC; S3 Emergent wetland vegetation with cattails, tules, 
and/or thickets. 

Vaux’s swift USFWS FSC; SC Redwood and Douglas-fir habitats with nests in large 
hollow trees and snags. 

Western spadefoot CNNDB SC Primarily in grassland habitats, also found in valley-
foothill hardwood woodlands. 

White-faced ibis USFWS FSC; SC Fresh emergent wetlands, shallow lacustrine waters, 
and the muddy ground or wet meadows and 
irrigated/flooded pastures and croplands. 

White-tailed kite CNNDB/USFWS S3, Fully 
Protected 

Lowland grasslands, agriculture, wetlands, oak-
woodlands, savannah, and riparian habitats associated 
with open areas. 

Packet Pg. 41

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-12 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Common Name Reporting 
Agency 

Protection 
Status 

Habitat 

Reptiles 

California horned lizard USFWS FSC; SC Wide range of habitats from gravelly-sandy substrate 
containing scattered shrubs, to clearing in riparian 
woodlands. 

Giant garter snake USFWS FT; CT Marshes, sloughs, and slow-moving creeks, with 
nocturnal retreats in holes and mammal burrows. 

Northwestern Pond Turtle USFWS FSC; SC Pacific slope drainages from Washington to Baja 
California. 

Amphibians 

California red-legged frog GL-DEIR FT; SC Pools, ponds, slow streams, and marshes. 

Fish 

Central Valley fall/late fall-
run Chinook salmon 

USFWS FC; SC Wide range of habitats from gravelly-sandy substrate 
containing scattered shrubs, to clearing in riparian 
woodlands. 

Central Valley steelhead USFWS FT Marshes, sloughs, and slow-moving creeks, with 
nocturnal retreats in holes and mammal burrows. 

Green sturgeon USFWS FSC; SC Pacific slope drainages from Washington to Baja 
California. 

Sacramento splittail USFWS FT; SC Primarily in the Sacramento-San Joaquin estuary. 

Winter-run Chinook 
salmon 

USFWS FE; CE The ocean and the Sacramento River and its 
tributaries. 

Invertebrates 

California Linderiella fairy 
shrimp 

CNNDB/USFWS S2/S3 Seasonal pools in unplowed grasslands with old 
alluvial soils underlain by hardpan or in sandstone 
depressions. 

Vernal Pool Tadpole 
Shrimp 

CNNDB/USFWS FE; S2/S3 Vernal pools and swales in the Sacramento Valley 
containing clear to highly turbid water. 

Valley Elderberry Longhorn 
Beetle 

CNNDB/USFWS FT; S2 Only occurs in the Central Valley of California in 
association with Blue Elderberry (Sambucus 
mexicana). 

Vernal Pool Fairy Shrimp CNNDB/USFWS FT; S2/S3 In a static rain-filled pools in the central valley 
grasslands and central and south coastal mountains. 

Mammals 

Fringed myotis bat USFWS FSC Roosts in caves, mines, and rock crevices within a 
variety of habitats. 

Greater western mastiff-bat USFWS FSC; SC Open, semi-arid to arid habitats, including conifer and 
deciduous woodlands, annual and perennial grasslands, 
chaparral, and urban. 

Long-eared myotis bat USFWS FSC Woodland and forest habitats, roosting in rock 
crevices, under bark, and tree snags. 

Long-legged myotis bat USFWS FSC Woodlands and forest habitats generally over 4,000 
feet. Roosts in rock crevices, under bark, in tree snags, 
and cliffs. 

Packet Pg. 42

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-13 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Common Name Reporting 
Agency 

Protection 
Status 

Habitat 

Pacific western big-eared 
bat 

USFWS FSC; SC All but alpine and sub-alpine habitats. 

San Joaquin pocket mouse USFWS FSC Dry, open grasslands or scrub area on fine textured 
soils in the Central and Salinas valleys. 

Small-footed myotis bat USFWS FSC Occurs in a variety of habitats, roosting in caves, 
crevices, and buildings. 

Spotted bat USFWS FSC Arid or ponderosa pine forests, and marshlands. 
Roosts in small cracks in cliffs and stony outcrops. 

Yuma myotis bat USFWS FSC Variety of habitats from juniper and riparian 
woodlands to desert regions near open water. 
Associates with water and roosts in caves, attics, under 
bridges, mines, and similar places. 

Habitats    

Alkali Meadow CNNDB S2  

Alkali Seep CNNDB S2  

Northern Hardpan Vernal 
Pool 

CNNDB S3  

Northern Volcanic Mud 
Flow Vernal Pool 

CNNDB S1  

Plants 

Big-scale Balsamroot CNNDB S2 Valley and foothill grassland, cismontane woodland. 

Boggs Lake Hedge-hyssop CNNDB/USFWS CE, S3 Clay soils in marshes, swamps and vernal pools. 

Dwarf Downingia CNNDB S3 Valley and foothill grassland and several types of 
vernal pools. 

Hispid Bird’s-Beak CNNDB/USFWS FSC; S2 In damp alkaline soils in meadows, playas, and valley 
and foothill grassland. 

Legenere CNNDB/USFWS FSC; S2 In beds of vernal pools. 

Red Bluff Dwarf Rush CNNDB S2 Chaparral, valley and foothill grassland, cismontane 
woodlands, and vernal pools. 

Source: Rocklin General Plan EIR, Appendix E, 2008 

Historic and Cultural Resources 

Numerous cultural and historic resources are located in the Rocklin area. Based on information from the 
Open Space, Conservation and Recreation Element of the Rocklin 2011 General Plan, these resources and 
historic sites include the following: 

Prehistoric Resources Present in the Rocklin Area 

 Bedrock grinding mortars 
 House pits (sites of prehistoric houses) 
 Grinding stones 
 Chipped stone tools  
 Bone tools 

Packet Pg. 43

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-14 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Historic Resources Present in the Rocklin Area 

 Historic foundations 
 Rock walls 
 Well pits 
 Ditches 
 Historic mines and mining artifacts  

The Rocklin Historical Society (RHS) and Rocklin History Museum are key historic resources for the City. 

Growth and Development Trends  

Based on information from the Bureau of Census, from 2000-2010, the City of Rocklin’s population grew 
by 57 percent. Rocklin’s growth rate is significantly higher than Placer County’s growth rate for the same 
period, which was estimated to be 40 percent. Most of Rocklin’s population growth since 2000 can be 
attributed to development in Whitney Oaks, Stanford Ranch, and Southeast Rocklin along with annexation 
and subsequent development in the Northwest Rocklin Annexation Area (Whitney Ranch). 

The number of housing units increased from 14,421 in 2000 to 20,800 in 2010. It is expected that the 
number of dwelling units will further increase to beyond 29,300 units at residential build-out of the city. 

The majority of future growth in Rocklin is anticipated to be concentrated in four areas: Clover Valley, the 
mid- to eastern portion of the Northwest Rocklin Annexation Area (Whitney Ranch), the Sierra College 
area and the Croftwood area, as these areas represent the last portions of the city with large tracts of vacant 
lands (see Figure 3.0-9, Neighborhood Areas, of the 2012 Rocklin General Plan Draft EIR). Because the 
City of Rocklin is surrounded by other jurisdictions on all sides, it is likely that the city boundaries will not 
expand beyond their current locations. The primary hazard in these undeveloped areas is wildland fires, as 
the areas contain extensive grasslands and oak woodlands. As these areas develop the majority of the 
grasslands and oak woodlands will be replaced with urban development and some of the current wildland 
hazards will be mitigated as a result of the development, but the development will also include the 
preservation of grassland and oak woodland areas that will create an urban/wildland fire hazard interface. 

Special Populations 

There are 55 and older age-restricted subdivisions in Rocklin and there are numerous congregate care/ 
assisted living facilities that are built or are being proposed to be built that have, or will have, elderly 
populations. Hazard-related concerns or issues regarding the vulnerability of elderly populations primarily 
relate to the potential need for evacuation of elderly citizens in the event of a hazard that creates a need for 
evacuations. 

Development since 2010 Plan 

New development in the City of Rocklin since the 2010 plan includes development adjacent to 100-year 
floodplains and potential wildfire areas.  With the exception of new retail commercial development located 
around the Sierra College Boulevard interchange with Interstate 80, the majority of development since 2010 
has been residential in nature. As noted in this annex, the primary hazard in the City’s undeveloped areas 

Packet Pg. 44

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-15 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

is wildland fires, and with the preservation of grassland and oak woodland areas adjacent to newly 
developing residential uses, there has been an increase in the size and scope of urban/wildland fire hazard 
interfaces and a potential corresponding increase in vulnerability to wildland fires. This potential increase 
is addressed through the removal of grassland and oak woodland areas as a function of urban development; 
Fire Department review of new development proposals, the identification and establishment of any 
necessary fire break areas and/or emergency access points; and regular maintenance of open space areas 
for fire fuel load reduction purposes using prescribed grazing and mechanical means. 

For any growth within flood hazard areas, the City enforces the permit and construction standards of their 
floodplain ordinance.  If any development were to have occurred in the floodplain, it would have conformed 
to the development and construction standards of the ordinance, thus effectively mitigating any increased 
vulnerability and future flood losses in the City.   

With continued population growth, the City’s vulnerability to natural hazards has a potential to increase.  
Continued enforcement of building codes and construction standards within the City will assist mitigating 
potential losses from any new development.   

Future Development 

The Sacramento Council on Governments (SACOG) modeled population projections for the City of 
Rocklin and other areas of the region in 2012 for a Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable 
Communities Strategy report.  This forecast uses a 2008 base year estimate with projections to 2020 and 
2035 for population, housing units, households and employment.  SACOG estimated the City population 
in 2020 and 2035 to be 65,845 and 72,312 respectively.  

As noted in the text above the basemap for the City, the City of Rocklin is in the process of incorporating 
the “island” of Placer County that is shown with crosshatches just south of I-80 into the City limits. 

Figure E-3 shows the City of Rocklin’s land use.  While the map does not specifically identify future growth 
areas but some understanding of future growth areas can be obtained from the map by seeing areas that lack 
road infrastructure and individual lots versus those areas that show those features. 

Packet Pg. 45

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-16 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Figure E-3 City of Rocklin Future Development Map 

 
Source:  City of Rocklin General Plan 

E.5.2. Estimating Potential Losses 

This section provides the vulnerability assessment, including any quantifiable loss estimates, for those 
hazards identified above in Table E-4 as high or medium significance hazards.  Impacts of past events and 
vulnerability of the City to specific hazards are further discussed below (see Section 4.1 Hazard 
Identification for more detailed information about these hazards and their impacts on the Placer County 
planning area).  Methodologies for calculating loss estimates are the same as those described in Section 4.3 
of the base plan.  In general, the most vulnerable structures are those located within the floodplain, in the 
wildland urban interface, other priority hazard areas, unreinforced masonry buildings, and buildings built 
prior to the introduction of modern building codes. 

An estimate of the vulnerability of the City to each identified priority hazard, in addition to the estimate of 
risk of future occurrence, is provided in each of the hazard-specific sections that follow.  Vulnerability is 
measured in general, qualitative terms and is a summary of the potential impact based on past occurrences, 
spatial extent, and damage and casualty potential.  It is categorized into the following classifications:  

Packet Pg. 46

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-17 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

 Extremely Low—The occurrence and potential cost of damage to life and property is very minimal to 
nonexistent. 

 Low—Minimal potential impact.  The occurrence and potential cost of damage to life and property is 
minimal. 

 Medium—Moderate potential impact.  This ranking carries a moderate threat level to the general 
population and/or built environment.  Here the potential damage is more isolated and less costly than a 
more widespread disaster.  

 High—Widespread potential impact.  This ranking carries a high threat to the general population and/or 
built environment.  The potential for damage is widespread.  Hazards in this category may have 
occurred in the past.  

 Extremely High—Very widespread with catastrophic impact. 

Flood:  100/500 year 

Likelihood of Future Occurrence–Occasional 
Vulnerability–Low 

Although rated as a low significance hazard, due to its importance in Placer County and in California, the 
flood hazard is included here.  Rocklin is traversed by several stream systems and is at risk to both riverine 
flooding and localized stormwater flooding. As previously described in Section 4.2 of the main plan, the 
Placer County Planning Area and the City of Rocklin have been subject to previous occurrences of flooding.  
In the City of Rocklin, much of the flood damage occurs in the floodplains of Antelope Creek, Secret Ravine 
Creek, Clover Valley Creek, and Sucker Creek.  Floodplains in the City are shown in Figure E-4.  

Packet Pg. 47

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-18 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Figure E-4 City of Rocklin – FEMA DFIRM Floodzones 

 

Packet Pg. 48

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-19 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Values at Risk 

GIS was used to determine the possible impacts of flooding within the City of Rocklin.  The methodology 
described in Section 4.3.7 of the base plan was followed in determining structures and values at risk to the 
1% (100-year) and 0.2% (500-year) annual chance flood event.  Table E-8 shows the property use, improved 
parcel count, improved values, estimated contents, total values and estimated loss of parcels that fall in a 
floodplain in the City.   

Table E-8 City of Rocklin – Count and Improved Value by Property Use by Detailed Flood 
Zone 

Flood 
Zone Property Use 

Total Parcel 
Count  

Total Land 
Value  

Improved 
Parcel Count  

Total Improved  
Value  Total Value* 

A 

Agricultural 0 $0 0 $0 $0 

Commercial 2 $850,145 1 $2,700,000  $3,550,145  

Industrial 2 $1,041,231 2 $3,684,763  $4,725,994  

Institutional 0 $0 0 $0 $0 

Natural/Open 0 $0 0 $0 $0 

Residential 0 $0 0 $0 $0 

Total Zone A 4 $1,891,376 3 $6,384,763 $8,276,146 

 

AE 

Agricultural 0 $0 0 $0 $0 

Commercial 43 $5,075,011 3 $1,025,141  $6,100,152  

Industrial 14 $3,803,954 4 $4,204,090  $8,008,044  

Institutional 1 $0 0 $0 $0 

Natural / Open 12 $168,490 0 $0  $168,490  

Residential 154 $17,622,695 149 $39,820,721  $57,443,416  

Total Zone AE 224 $26,670,150 156 $45,049,952 $71,720,102 

 

AO 

Agricultural 0 $0 0 $0 $0 

Commercial 1 $30,523 1 $71,232 $101,755  

Industrial 7 $3,051,414 6 $11,329,996 $14,381,410  

Institutional 0 $0 0 $0 $0 

Natural / Open 0 $0 0 $0 $0 

Residential 2 $175,853 2 $244,501 $420,354  

Total Zone AO 10 $3,257,790 9 $11,645,729 $14,903,519 

 

Shaded X 

Agricultural 0 $0 0 $0 $0 

Commercial 10 $1,265,544 3 $2,253,714 $3,519,258  

Industrial 2 $0 0 $0 $0   

Packet Pg. 49

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-20 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Flood 
Zone Property Use 

Total Parcel 
Count  

Total Land 
Value  

Improved 
Parcel Count  

Total Improved  
Value  Total Value* 

Institutional 1 $70,704 1 $88,383  $159,087  

Natural / Open 0 $0 0 $0 $0 

Residential 76 $4,616,865 75 $10,108,571  $14,725,436  

Total Shaded X 89 $5,953,113 79 $12,450,668 $18,403,781 

 

X 

Agricultural 4 $1,946,450 0 $0  $1,946,450  

Commercial 1,457 $388,053,981 449 $517,092,885  $905,146,866  

Industrial 215 $50,996,449 141 $106,471,057  $157,467,506  

Institutional 65 $17,148,261 21 $72,893,625  $90,041,886  

Natural/Open 90 $2,825,249 6 $3,123,464  $5,948,713  

Residential 17,792 $1,599,528,105 17,147 $4,272,923,915  $5,872,452,020  

Total Zone X 19,623 $2,060,498,495 17,764 $4,972,504,946 $7,033,003,441 

 

Grand Totals 19,950 $2,098,270,924 18,011 $5,048,036,058 $7,146,306,982 
Source:  FEMA DFIRM, Placer County 2015 Parcel/Assessor’s Data 

Table E-9 summarizes Table E-8 above and shows City of Rocklin loss estimates and shows improved 
values at risk by FEMA 1% and 0.2% annual chance flood zones.   

Table E-9 City of Rocklin – Flood Loss Summary 

Jurisdiction 
Flood 
Zone 

Improved 
Parcel 
Count 

Total Improved 
Value 

Estimated 
Contents 
Value 

Total 
Improved/ 
Contents 
Value 

Loss 
Estimate 

Loss 
Ratio 

Rocklin 
1% 168 $63,080,444 $52,657,253 $115,737,697 $23,147,539 0.32% 

0.2% 79 $12,450,668 $7,396,383 $19,847,051 $3,969,410 0.06% 
Source:  FEMA DFIRM, Placer County 2015 Parcel/Assessor’s Data 

According to Table E-8 and Table E-9, the City of Rocklin has 168 improved parcels and $115,737,697 of 
structure and contents value in the 1% annual chance floodplain.  These values can be refined a step further.  
Applying the 20 percent damage factor as previously described in Section 4.3.7 of the base plan, there is a 
1% chance in any given year of a flood event causing roughly $23,147,539 in damage in the City of Rocklin.  
A loss ratio of 0.32% indicates that losses in Rocklin to flood would be relatively minor, as less than an 
eighth of a percent of the total values in the City would be damaged. 

Flooded Acres 

Also of interest is the land area affected by the various flood zones.  The following is an analysis of flooded 
acres in the City in comparison to total area within the City limits.  The same methodology, as discussed in 
Section 4.3.7 of the base plan, was used for the City of Rocklin as well as for the County as a whole.  Table 

Packet Pg. 50

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-21 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

E-10 represents a detailed and summary analysis of total acres for each FEMA DFIRM flood zone in the 
City. 

Table E-10 City of Rocklin – Flooded Acres 

Flood Zone Property Use Total Flooded Acres  
Improved Flooded 
Acres  

% of Improved 
Flooded Acres 

A 

Agricultural 0 0 0.0% 

Commercial 4.54 4.36 96.0% 

Industrial 5.67 5.67 100.0% 

Institutional 0 0 0.0% 

Natural/Open 0 0 0.0% 

Residential 0 0 0.0% 

AE 

Agricultural 0 0 0.0% 

Commercial 338.38 2.17 0.6% 

Industrial 58.92 4.63 7.9% 

Institutional 21.68 0 0.0% 

Natural/Open 95.31 0 0.0% 

Residential 118.10 115.30 97.6% 

AO 

Agricultural 0 0 0.0% 

Commercial 0.60 0.60 100.0% 

Industrial 16.39 14.97 91.4% 

Institutional 0 0 0.0% 

Natural/Open 0 0 0.0% 

Residential 2.08 2.08 100.0% 

Total 1%  661.68 149.78 22.6% 

Shaded X 

Agricultural 0 0 0.0% 

Commercial 12.95 3.06 23.7% 

Industrial 0.03 0 0.0% 

Institutional 0.29 0.29 100.0% 

Natural/Open 0 0 0.0% 

Residential 13.08 12.92 98.8% 

Total 0.2%  26.34 16.27 61.8% 
Source:  FEMA DFIRM, Placer County 2015 Parcel/Assessor’s Data 

Population at Risk  

The DFIRM flood zones were overlayed on the parcel layer.  Those residential parcel centroids that intersect 
the severity zones were counted and multiplied by the 2010 Census Bureau average household factors for 
Rocklin.  According to this analysis, there is a total population of 628 residents of the City at risk to 
flooding, 422 in the 1% chance, and 206 in the 0.2%.  This is shown in Table E-11.   

Packet Pg. 51

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-22 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Table E-11 City of Rocklin – Count of Improved Residential Parcels and Population by Flood 
Zone 

Flood Zone  Improved Residential Parcels Population* 

A 0 0 

AE 154 417 

AO 2 5 

Total 1% Annual Chance 156 422 

 

Shaded X (0.2% Annual Chance) 76 206 

 

D 0 0 
Source:  FEMA DFIRM, Placer County 2015 Parcel/Assessor’s Data, US Census Bureau 
* Average household populations from the 2010 US Census were used: Rocklin– 2.71. 

Critical Facilities at Risk 

There are no critical facilities at risk in the City of Rocklin in the flood zones.  

Insurance Coverage, Claims Paid, and Repetitive Losses 

The City of Rocklin joined the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) in 2001. The City does not 
participate in CRS. NFIP Insurance data indicates that as of September 30, 2015, there were 239 flood 
insurance policies in force in the City with $68,461,500 of coverage.  Of the 239 policies, 226 were 
residential and 13 were nonresidential; 151 of the policies were in A zones (the other 88 were in B, C, and 
X zones).  The GIS parcel analysis detailed above identified 168 improved parcels in the 100-year flood 
zone.  151 policies for 168 parcels in the 100-year floodplain equates to insurance coverage of 89.9 percent. 

There have been 20 historical claims for flood losses totaling $252,514; although, details were only 
provided on 15 of the losses.  Of the 15 losses, eight were in the A zones and seven were standard policies 
located in B, C, or X zones.  Ten of these were for pre-FIRM structures; five were for post-FIRM structures.  
NFIP data further indicates that there are three repetitive loss (RL) buildings, with two RL buildings being 
insured.  There have been a total of 5 RL losses, with 3 insured RL losses.  There are no severe repetitive 
loss buildings within the City.   

The Planning Team for the City did further research: 

 One of the 3 RL properties is located in another jurisdiction (community of Granite Bay in 
unincorporated Placer County).   

 The second of the 3 RL properties is on Cimerron Court.  The property includes both X and AE zones. 
 The final of the 3 RL properties is on Rocklin Road.  It is a mobile home park in both the X and AE 

Zone.  This is a mobile home park.  The City could not identify a particular property as FEMA provided 
only the generic address for the park.  A small portion of this mobile home park was subject to a FEMA 
LOMR in 2015, but the majority of the park was not. 

Packet Pg. 52

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-23 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

California Department of Water Resources Best Available Maps (BAM) 

The FEMA regulatory maps provide just one perspective on flood risks in Placer County.  Senate Bill 5 
(SB 5), enacted in 2007, authorized the California DWR to develop the Best Available Maps (BAM) 
displaying 100- and 200-year floodplains for areas located within the Sacramento-San Joaquin (SAC-SJ) 
Valley watershed.  SB 5 requires that these maps contain the best available information on flood hazards 
and be provided to cities and counties in the SAC-SJ Valley watershed.  This effort was completed by DWR 
in 2008.  DWR has expanded the BAM to cover all counties in the State and to include 500-year floodplains.  

Different than the FEMA DFIRMs which have been prepared to support the NFIP and reflect only the 100-
year event risk, the BAMs are provided for informational purposes and are intended to reflect current 100-
, 200-, and 500-year event risks using the best available data.  The 100-year floodplain limits on the BAM 
are a composite of multiple 100-year floodplain mapping sources.  It is intended to show all currently 
identified areas at risk for a 100-year flood event, including FEMA’s 100-year floodplains.  The BAM are 
comprised of different engineering studies performed by FEMA, Corps, and DWR for assessment of 
potential 100-, 200-, and 500-year floodplain areas.  These studies are used for different planning and/or 
regulatory applications.  They are for the same flood frequency, however, they may use varied analytical 
and quality control criteria depending on the study type requirements. 

The value in the BAMs is that they provide a bigger picture view of potential flood risk to the City than 
that provided in the FEMA DFIRMs.  This provides the community and residents with an additional tool 
for understanding potential flood hazards not currently mapped as a regulated floodplain.  Improved 
awareness of flood risk can reduce exposure to flooding for new structures and promote increased protection 
for existing development. Informed land use planning will also assist in identifying levee maintenance 
needs and levels of protection.  By including the FEMA 100-year floodplain, it also supports identification 
of the need and requirement for flood insurance.  The BAM map for Rocklin is shown in Figure E-5. 

Packet Pg. 53

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-24 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Figure E-5 City of Rocklin Best Available Map 

 
Source:  California DWR 

Future Development 

The City evaluates each proposed development project to determine if it is in or near a floodplain. It if it is, 
the City requires that any structure by constructed out of the floodplain and have a first floor at least two 
feet above the 100-year floodplain elevation. The City also continues to explore ways to address floodplain 
issues through the use of drainage studies, drainage improvements, elevation certificates and other available 
strategies. The City has a GIS Division which assists in the development of GIS-based mapping of pertinent 
information. This data can be used by all departments and agencies for emergency pre-planning and during 
emergency incidents. 

As noted in the text before the basemap, the City of Rocklin is in the process of incorporating the “island” 
of Placer County that is shown with crosshatches just south of I-80 into the City limits. 

Flood:  Localized Flooding 

Likelihood of Future Occurrence–Likely 
Vulnerability–Medium 

Localized/stormwater flood issues specific to the City of Rocklin have historically affected several locations 
throughout the City, typically older parts of the City that were developed with infrastructure that is 
inadequate to accommodate stormwater flows from heavy rain/severe weather events. In some locations 
improvements have been installed in an effort to add additional capacity to the storm drain system, but these 

Packet Pg. 54

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-25 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

improvements may not have completely resolved flooding occurrences.  These locations are shown in Table 
E-13. 

Table E-12 City of Rocklin – Localized Flooding Areas 

Road Name Flooding 
Pavement 
Deterioration Washouts 

High 
Water/ 
Creek 
Crossing 

Landslides/ 
Mudslides Debris 

Downed 
Trees 

Second Street X       

Cimerron Court X       

Farrier Drive    X    

Paragon Court X       

El Don Drive X   X    

Aguilar Road X X X X    

Fleet Circle X       

Bryce Court X       
Source:  City of Rocklin 

Future Development 

Future development in the City will add more impervious surfaces and need to drain those waters.  The 
City will need to be proactive to ensure that increased development has proper siting and drainage for 
stormwaters.  The risk of localized flooding to future development can also be minimized by accurate 
recordkeeping of repetitive localized storm activity.  Mitigating the root causes of the localized stormwater 
flooding will reduce future risks of losses. The City has a GIS Division which assists in the development 
of GIS-based mapping of pertinent information. This data can be used by all departments and agencies for 
emergency pre-planning and during emergency incidents. 

Severe Weather:  Extreme Heat 

Likelihood of Future Occurrence–Likely 
Vulnerability–Medium 

Extreme heat occurs on an annual basis, most commonly at the peak of the summer season.  As Rocklin is 
located in the western portion of Placer County at relatively low elevation, extremely high temperatures are 
a more common occurrence than cold temperatures.  From late spring through fall, it is not unusual for 
temperatures to exceed 90°F and higher.  Provided by the Western Regional Climate Center, Table E-14 
illustrates historical temperature patterns for Rocklin. 

Table E-13 Rocklin Record High Temperatures and Days above 90 Degrees by Month 

Month Temperature (F) Year Number of Days >= 90°F 

May 107° 1910 5.4 

June 115° 1961 14.7 

Packet Pg. 55

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-26 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Month Temperature (F) Year Number of Days >= 90°F 

July 115° 1933 26.0 

August 118° 1933 24.6 

September 114° 1950 15.4 

October 105° 1910 3.4 

Totals   89.5 
Source:  Western Regional Climate Center 

Based on this historic data, there are typically 89 days per year in excess of 90 degrees Fahrenheit. 

Future Development 

Vulnerability to extreme heat will increase as the average age of the population in the City shifts.  Greater 
numbers of future senior citizens will result from the large number of baby boomers in the City.  The elderly 
are more at risk to the effects of extreme heat, especially those without proper air conditioning.  However, 
many of the residents of the City are accustomed to living with extreme heat and take precautions to guard 
against the threat of extreme heat.  The City has a GIS Division which assists in the development of GIS-
based mapping of pertinent information. This data can be used by all departments and agencies for 
emergency pre-planning and during emergency incidents. 

Severe Weather:  Freeze and Snow 

Likelihood of Future Occurrence–Likely 
Vulnerability–Medium 

Freeze and snow occurs on an annual basis, most commonly at the peak of the winter season.  The record 
low temperature in Rocklin is 14°F, recorded on January 21, 1937, though temperatures below freezing are 
not uncommon. Data for the following table were provided by the Rocklin Weather Station for the period 
of record from 1904 to 1976 illustrating historical temperature patterns in the Rocklin area.  Table E-16 
illustrates historical temperatures in Rocklin. 

Table E-14 Rocklin Record Low Temperatures and Days below Freezing by Month 

Month Temperature (F) Year Number of Days <= 32°F 

January 14° 1937 12.7 

February 20° 1929 6.7 

March 23° 1944 3.6 

April 27° 1929 1.0 

May 19° 1928 0.1 

October 25° 1917 0.7 

November 20° 1921 5.6 

December 14° 1932 12.1 

Totals   42.5 

Packet Pg. 56

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-27 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Source:  Western Regional Climate Center 

Future Development 

Like extreme heat, vulnerability to freeze will increase as the average age of the population in the City 
shifts.  Greater numbers of future senior citizens will result from the large number of baby boomers in the 
City.  The elderly are more at risk to the effects of freeze.  However, many of the residents of the City are 
accustomed to living with freeze and take precautions to guard against the threat of freeze. The City has a 
GIS Division which assists in the development of GIS-based mapping of pertinent information. This data 
can be used by all departments and agencies for emergency pre-planning and during emergency incidents. 

Severe Weather:  Heavy Rains and Storms (Thunderstorms/Hail, 
Lightning/Wind/Tornadoes) 

Likelihood of Future Occurrence–Likely 
Vulnerability–Medium 

Information is limited regarding the severe weather events that impact the City of Rocklin. In general, any 
severe storm that affects Placer County has local affects in Rocklin as well. Thunderstorms, high winds, 
hail, and lightning can each have localized impacts on infrastructure, properties, and public safety. 
Transportation and commerce are also affected in Rocklin when severe storms occur, mirroring impacts 
countywide as described in Section 4.2.5. 

Future Development 

The City enforces the state building code and other ordinances, which regulate construction techniques that 
minimize damage from heavy storms and rain.  Future development in the City is subject to these building 
codes.  New critical facilities such as communications towers should be built to withstand hail damage, 
lightning, and heavy rains.  The City has a GIS Division which assists in the development of GIS-based 
mapping of pertinent information. This data can be used by all departments and agencies for emergency 
pre-planning and during emergency incidents. 

Wildfire 

Likelihood of Future Occurrence–Highly Likely 
Vulnerability–Medium 

Wildfire is a present concern for all communities in California. According to the Community Safety 
Element of Rocklin’s General Plan, while the major fire threat in the city is related to urban development, 
annexations in recent decades incorporated large areas of grassland subject to wildfire. These areas include 
Clover Valley Lakes, the southern end of China Garden Road, portions of Whitney Oaks, the 
Croftwood/Dias Lane area, the Sunset Ranchos and various open-space easements and recreational 
properties.  Following the methodology described in Section 4.3.2 Vulnerability of Placer County to 
Specific Hazards, a wildfire map for the City of Rocklin was created that shows areas of fire hazard risk by 
category (see Figure E-6). 

Packet Pg. 57

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-28 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

The Planning Team for the City noted that the large orange area (High Risk) located to the north of I-80 
and to the east of Sierra College Boulevard has now been mostly developed with shopping centers.  Updated 
mapping may not deem this a high risk area. Also, the Plannng Team noted that the City of Rocklin is in 
the process of incorporating the “island” of Placer County just south of I-80 into the City limits. 

Packet Pg. 58

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-29 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Figure E-6 City of Rocklin’s Fire Severity Zones  

 

Packet Pg. 59

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-30 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Values at Risk 

Analysis results for Rocklin are shown in Table E-16, which summarizes total parcel counts, improved 
parcel counts and their structure values by occupancy type as well as the percentage of parcels affected by 
fire.   

Table E-15 City of Rocklin – Count and Value of Parcels by Property Use and Fire Severity 
Zone 

Fire Severity 
Zone Property Use  

Total 
Parcel 
Count  

Total Land 
Value  

Improved 
Parcel 
Count  

Improved 
Value  Total Value* 

% of 
Affected 
Parcels 
to Total 

Very High 

Agricultural 0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Commercial 0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Industrial 0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Institutional 0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Natural/Open 
Space 

0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Residential 0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Total 0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

 

High 

Agricultural 0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Commercial 42 $15,198,603 8 $12,379,069 $27,577,672 1.8% 

Industrial 0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Institutional 0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Natural/Open 
Space 

0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Residential 4 $657,401 4 $528,147 $1,185,548 0.0% 

Total 46 $15,856,004 12 $12,907,216 $28,763,220 0.1% 

 

Moderate 

Agricultural 4 $1,946,450 0 $0 $1,946,450 0.0% 

Commercial 592 $197,326,613 116 $201,513,709 $398,840,322 25.4% 

Industrial 95 $26,480,763 57 $41,221,645 $67,702,408 37.3% 

Institutional 17 $2,826,714 3 $2,716,065 $5,542,779 13.6% 

Natural/Open 
Space 

50 $247,799 1 $225,418 $473,217 16.7% 

Residential 4,439 $407,209,184 3,967 $1,157,812,163 $1,565,021,347 22.8% 

Total 5,197 $636,037,523 4,144 $1,403,489,000 $2,039,526,523 23.0% 

 

Urban 
Unzoned 

Agricultural 0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Commercial 877 $182,749,988 333 $309,250,194 $492,000,182 72.9% 

Packet Pg. 60

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-31 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Fire Severity 
Zone Property Use  

Total 
Parcel 
Count  

Total Land 
Value  

Improved 
Parcel 
Count  

Improved 
Value  Total Value* 

% of 
Affected 
Parcels 
to Total 

Industrial 144 $32,412,285 96 $84,468,261 $116,880,546 62.7% 

Institutional 50 $14,392,251 19 $70,265,943 $84,658,194 86.4% 

Natural/Open 
Space 

52 $2,745,940 5 $2,898,046 $5,643,986 83.3% 

Residential 13,581 $1,214,076,933 13,402 $3,164,757,398 $4,378,834,331 77.1% 

Total 14,704 $1,446,377,397 13,855 $3,631,639,842 $5,078,017,239 76.9% 

 

Non-
Wildland/Non-
Urban 

Agricultural 0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Commercial 2 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Industrial 1 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Institutional 0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Natural/Open 
Space 

0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Residential 0 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Total 3 $0 0 $0 $0 0.0% 

 

 Grand Total 19,950 $2,098,270,924 18,011 $5,048,036,058 $7,146,306,982 100.0% 
Source:  Placer County 2015 Parcel/Assessor’s Data, CAL FIRE 
*Land and structure values 

Population at Risk 

The Fire Severity Zone dataset was overlayed on the parcel layer.  Those residential parcel centroids that 
intersect the severity zones were counted and multiplied by the 2010 Census Bureau average household 
factors for each jurisdiction and unincorporated area.  Results were tabulated by jurisdiction.  According to 
this analysis, there is a total population of 10,762 residents of Rocklin at risk to moderate or higher wildfire 
risk.  This is shown in Table E-17. 

Packet Pg. 61

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-32 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Table E-16 City of Rocklin – Count of Improved Residential Parcels and Population by Fire 
Severity Zone 

Fire Severity Zone Improved Residential Parcels Population* 

Very High 0 0 

High 4 11 

Moderate 3,967 10,751 

Urban Unzoned 13,402 36,319 

Non-Wildland/Urban 0 0 

None 0 0 

Total 17,373 47,081 
Source:  Placer County 2015 Parcel/Assessor’s Data, CAL FIRE 
* Average household populations for Rocklin (2.71) from the 2010 US Census were used 

Critical Facilities at Risk 

Wildfire analysis was performed on the critical facility inventory in Placer County and all jurisdictions.  
GIS was used to determine whether the facility locations intersect a fire severity zone provided by CAL 
FIRE, and if so, which zone it intersects.  There are 30 facilities in the moderate or higher fire severity zone 
in the City.  These are shown in Figure E-7 and detailed in Table E-18.  Details of critical facility definition, 
type, name and address and jurisdiction by fire zone are listed in Appendix F. 

Packet Pg. 62

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-33 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Figure E-7 City of Rocklin – Critical Facilities in the Fire Severity Zones 

 

Packet Pg. 63

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-34 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Table E-17 City of Rocklin – Critical Facilities in the Fire Severity Zones 

Fire Hazard Severity Zone Critical Facility Class Facility Type Facility Count 

Very High Class 1 - - 

Class 2 - - 

Class 3 - - 

 Total Very High 0 

High Class 1 - - 

Class 2 - - 

Class 3 - - 

 Total High 0 

Moderate Class 1 Communication Transmission Sites 1 

Class 2 Fire Station 1 

School 1 

Class 3 Water Treatment Plant 1 

 Total Moderate 4 

Non-Wildland/Non-Urban Class 1 - - 

Class 2 - - 

Class 3 - - 

 Total Non-Wildland/Non-Urban - 

Urban Unzoned Class 1 Dispatch Center 1 

Emergency Operation Center 1 

Class 2 Fire Station 2 

Police Station 1 

Class 3 Hall 2 

Hazardous Materials Facility 1 

School 18 

 Total Urban Unzoned 26 

    

Total   30 
Source: CAL FIRE, Placer County GIS 

Future Development 

The City has implemented prescribed grazing, weed abatement and fire fuel load reduction efforts to help 
reduce the risks associated with potential wildfires. The City has a GIS Division which assists in the 
development of GIS-based mapping of pertinent information. This data can be used by all departments and 
agencies for emergency pre-planning and during emergency incidents. 

Packet Pg. 64

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-35 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Hazardous Materials Transport 

Likelihood of Future Occurrence–Likely 
Vulnerability–Medium 

The Union Pacific Railroad line passes through the City of Rocklin. Hazardous materials are regularly 
shipped via the rail line and, while unlikely, an incident involving a rail accident within the City could have 
devastating effects. 

The City has little control over the types of materials that are shipped via the rail line. With regard to 
government activities, the content of shipments may be confidential for reasons of security and/or is 
generally unknown to the City. While the City has little influence over the types of material transported via 
the rail line, the potential for rail incidents can be reduced by ensuring that at-grade crossings within the 
city are operating in a safe and effective manner. 

State Route 65 and Interstate 80 pass through the City as well.  These are designated Cal Trans hazardous 
materials routes.  The HMPC also noted that petroleum distribution lines and storage tanks are located in 
the City. 

Populations at Risk 

To determine the populations at risk from a transportation-related hazardous materials release within 
identified transportation corridors, an analysis was performed using GIS.  A one mile buffer was applied to 
both sides of Highways 20, 49, 65, 80, 89, 174, 193, and 267, as well as the BNSF and Union Pacific 
Railroads.  The result is a two-mile buffer zone around each transportation corridor that is used for risk-
analysis. 

Analysis was done for jurisdictions found in Table E-19.  This table shows total population that are within 
the proximity of this two-mile buffer of all the highway and railroad corridors.  Using GIS, the buffered 
corridor was overlaid on the improved residential parcel data.  Those parcel centroids that intersect the 
buffered corridor were counted and multiplied by the 2010 Census Bureau average household factors for 
the City. According to this analysis, there is a total population of 48,249 in the buffered corridors.     

Table E-18 City of Rocklin – Populations at Risk in Haz-Mat Corridors 

Jurisdiction Residential Parcels Population 

Loomis 17,804 48,249 
Source:  Cal Trans, Placer County GIS, US Census Bureau  
* Average household populations from the 2010 US Census were used Rocklin– 2.71. 

Critical Facilities at Risk 

To determine the critical facilities at risk from a transportation-related hazardous materials release within 
identified transportation corridors, an analysis was performed using GIS.  A one mile buffer was applied to 
both sides of Highways 20, 49, 65, 80, 89, 174, 193, and 267, as well as the BNSF and Union Pacific 

Packet Pg. 65

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-36 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Railroads.  The result is a two-mile buffer zone around each transportation corridor that is used for risk-
analysis. 

Analysis was done for jurisdictions found in Table E-19.  This table shows critical facilities located within 
the proximity of this two-mile buffer of all the highway and railroad corridors.  Some facilities fall in the 
highway routes, some in the rail routes, and some fall in both the highway and rail routes.  According to 
this analysis, there are 25 critical facilities in the buffered corridors.     

Packet Pg. 66

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-37 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Figure E-8 City of Rocklin– Critical Facilities at Risk in Haz-Mat Corridors 

 

Packet Pg. 67

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-38 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Table E-19 City of Rocklin – Critical Facilities at Risk in Haz-Mat Corridors  

Hazardous Materials 
Route 

Critical Facility Class Facility Type Facility Count 

Hazardous Materials 
Highway Route 

Class 1 - - 

Class 2 Fire Station 2 

Class 3 Fairground 1 

School 7 

 Total Hazardous 
Materials Highway Route 

10 

Hazardous Materials 
Railroad Route 

Class 1 Communication 
Transmission Sites 

1 

Class 2 - - 

Class 3 School 1 

Water Treatment Plant 1 

 Total Hazardous 
Materials Railroad Route 

3 

Combined Hazardous 
Materials Highway and 
Railroad Route 

Class 1 Dispatch Center 1 

Emergency Operation 
Center 

1 

Class 2 Fire Station 1 

Police Station 1 

Class 3 Hall 2 

School 6 

 Total Combined Routes 12 

Total   25 
Source:  Cal Trans, Placer County GIS 

Future Development 

Development will continue to occur in hazardous materials affected areas.  It is important that the City 
make residents who choose to live or develop in hazmat zones about the possibility of being affected by a 
hazardous materials spill. 

E.6 Capability Assessment 

Capabilities are the programs and policies currently in use to reduce hazard impacts or that could be used 
to implement hazard mitigation activities. This capabilities assessment is divided into five sections: 
regulatory mitigation capabilities, administrative and technical mitigation capabilities, fiscal mitigation 
capabilities, mitigation education, outreach, and partnerships, and other mitigation efforts. 

Packet Pg. 68

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-39 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

E.6.1. Regulatory Mitigation Capabilities 

Table E-21 lists regulatory mitigation capabilities, including planning and land management tools, typically 
used by local jurisdictions to implement hazard mitigation activities and indicates those that are in place in 
the City of Rocklin.  

Table E-20 City of Rocklin’s Regulatory Mitigation Capabilities 

Plans 
Y/N 
Year 

Does the plan/program address hazards? 
Does the plan identify projects to include in the mitigation 
strategy? 
Can the plan be used to implement mitigation actions? 

Comprehensive/Master Plan Y  2012 City of Rocklin General Plan Update contains a 
Community Safety Element which addresses hazards through 
goals and policies but it does not identify specific projects. The 
Community Safety Element can be used to support mitigation 
actions provided they are consistent with the goals and policies. 

Capital Improvements Plan Y Capital Improvement Plan last updated in 2007. The Plan 
identifies capital improvement projects such as street and 
roadway improvements but does not directly address hazards, 
although some projects when built will indirectly address 
hazards. 

Economic Development Plan Y The Rocklin City Council includes a Strategic Plan as part of its 
annual budget adoption process, but it does not specifically 
address hazards or mitigation actions. 

Local Emergency Operations Plan Y Emergency Operations Plan last updated in 2014. Addresses 
planned response to emergencies associated with disasters, 
technological incidents or other dangerous conditions created 
either by man or nature but does not identify specific mitigation 
projects. 

Continuity of Operations Plan Y See Local Emergency Operations Plan above. 

Transportation Plan Y See Capital Improvement Plan above. 

Stormwater Management Plan/Program Y Conditions listed in City’s standard improvement requirements 
and standard list of conditions. 

Engineering Studies for Streams Y Hydraulic analyses are required for new development projects 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan Y Wildfire hazards included in City’s Emergency Operations Plan 

Other special plans (e.g., brownfields 
redevelopment, disaster recovery, coastal 
zone management, climate change 
adaptation) 

N  

Building Code, Permitting, and 
Inspections Y/N Are codes adequately enforced? 

Building Code  Y Version/Year: 2013 CBC.  The building code is adequately 
enforced. 

Building Code Effectiveness Grading 
Schedule (BCEGS) Score 

N Score: 

Fire department ISO rating: Y Rating:  2 

Packet Pg. 69

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-40 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Site plan review requirements Y Required prior to issuance of engineering, building, or planning 
permits.  This is adequately enforced. 

Land Use Planning and Ordinances  Y/N 

Is the ordinance an effective measure for reducing hazard 
impacts? 
Is the ordinance adequately administered and enforced? 

Zoning ordinance Y Indirectly reduces hazard impacts through building setback, size 
and height requirements as well as lot coverage requirements. 
Adequately administered and enforced. 

Subdivision ordinance Y Indirectly reduces hazard impacts through policies, standards, 
requirements and procedures that regulate the design and 
improvement of all subdivisions. Adequately administered and 
enforced. 

Floodplain ordinance Y Reduces flooding hazards by applying regulations throughout the 
City for development within or near flood prone areas. 
Adequately administered and enforced. 

Natural hazard specific ordinance 
(stormwater, steep slope, wildfire) 

N  

Flood insurance rate maps Y FEMA flood insurance rate maps (FIRM) are applicable and are 
an effective measure for reducing hazard impacts. Adequately 
administered and enforced. 

Elevation Certificates Y Obtained by private property owners, does not directly reduce 
hazard impacts. Adequately administered and enforced. 

Acquisition of land for open space and 
public recreation uses 

Y Open space and recreation uses identified in City’s General Plan 
and created as part of development review process, assists in 
reduction of hazard impacts by preserving lands that may 
contain hazards. Adequately administered and enforced. 

Erosion or sediment control program Y Erosion and Sediment Control Ordinance adopted, reduces 
hazard impacts related to water quality. Adequately administered 
and enforced. 

Other   

How can these capabilities be expanded and improved to reduce risk? 

 
Source: City of Rocklin 

As indicated above, the City has several programs, plans, policies, codes and ordinances in place and/or 
that they follow. The General Plan for the City of Rocklin is the most comprehensive. The following section 
provides an overview of the General Plan and identifies specific policies related to hazard mitigation that 
are included in the plan 

The City of Rocklin General Plan (2012 General Plan Update) 

The City of Rocklin General Plan provides a vision for the future of the City. The plan discusses existing 
conditions and creates a framework of policies that encourage progress toward the agreed upon goals for 
the community.  

The general plan includes a Community Safety Element that focuses on potential natural and human-created 
hazards. It describes activities and services that provide protection from these hazards and considers the 

Packet Pg. 70

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-41 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

potential impact of hazards to present and future development of the Rocklin Planning Area. Identified 
hazards include: geologic hazards, seismic safety, flood hazards, hazardous materials handling, emergency 
preparedness, and fire hazards.  The action plan component of the Summary of Goals & Policies & Action 
Plan section of the Rocklin General Plan (October 2012) has been incorporated into the final version of the 
General Plan. Public safety and mitigation-related policies from the General Plan that have been developed 
are presented below in Table E-22 and Table E-23. 

Table E-21 Rocklin General Plan Community Safety Element Goals and Policies 

Safety Element Goals & Policies 

Goal for 
Community Safety 

To minimize danger from hazards and to protect residents and visitors from earthquake, fire, 
flood, other natural disasters, and human-created hazards such as train derailment, industrial 
accidents, acts of war or terrorism, and accidental release of harmful materials. 

General Policies 

S-1 Require engineering analysis of new development proposals in areas with possible soil instability, 
flooding, earthquake faults, or other hazards, and to prohibit development that cannot mitigate 
the applicable hazard. 

S-2 Maintain a City Emergency Operations Plan, to include the National Incident Management 
System (N.I.M.S.). 

S-3 Coordinate with local and State Emergency Management agencies utilizing the Standardized 
Emergency Management System (S.E.M.S.) and National Incident Management System (N.I.M.S.) 
in order to facilitate multi-agency emergency response. 

S-4 Identify in the Emergency Operations Plan evacuation routes and shelter locations for use in case 
of disasters or emergencies. 

S-5 Maintain appropriate standards for minimum road widths and turnarounds. 

S-6 Coordinate with State and Federal agencies regarding homeland security, recognizing the City’s 
role as first responder to local incidents. 

Flooding Policies 

S-7 Consult with the Placer County Flood Control and Water Conservation District and other 
appropriate entities regarding regional approaches for the planning, construction, operation and 
maintenance of drainage and flood control facilities. 

S-8 Maintain and implement the City’s Ordinance regarding “Flood Hazard Areas.” 

S-9 Ensure that the City’s Regulatory Floodplain, based upon the most current information, both 
upstream and downstream, and is not adversely affected by new development. 

S-10 Require that new development detain on-site drainage such that the rate of runoff flow is 
maintained at pre-development levels, except where detention is not recommended in plans and 
policies adopted by the Placer County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 
(PCFCWCD), and to require coordination with other projects’ master plans to ensure no adverse 
cumulative effects. In lieu of detention, the City may require retention and/or off-site drainage 
improvements that are more beneficial to the community’s overall drainage system. 

S-11 Ensure that new development does not result in on-site flooding or increase flooding of off-site 
properties. 

S-12 Require new development to annex into an existing drainage maintenance district where 
warranted. 

Hazardous Materials/Contaminated Sites Policies 

Packet Pg. 71

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-42 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Safety Element Goals & Policies 

S-13 Require existing and new commercial and industrial uses involving the use, handling, transport or 
disposal of hazardous materials within the City to disclose their activities in accordance with 
Placer County guidelines and the requirements of State law. 

S-14 Require that construction activities cease if contamination is discovered on construction projects 
until the contamination is reported, and its extent is assessed, delineated, and isolated, as 
appropriate. Remediation shall occur to the satisfaction of the appropriate responsible agency 
(such as the Placer County Environmental Health Services, the Central Valley Regional Water 
Quality Control Board, the Department of Toxic Substances Control, or the City of Rocklin, 
depending on the type of contamination). 

S-15 Require site-specific hazard investigations to be conducted, if determined to be necessary by the 
City, to confirm potentially contaminated soils prior to approval of new discretionary 
development projects. 

Fire Hazards Policies 

S-16 Require new development and projects proposing land use changes to annex into existing or new 
Community Facilities Districts for fire prevention/suppression and medical response, or to create 
other financing mechanisms as necessary. 

S-17 Require substantially vacant newly annexed areas containing wildland fire potential to bear 
additional costs associated with contracting to CalFire for fire suppression or provide other 
means of mitigation approved by the Fire Department until such time as urban services become 
available. 

S-18 Incorporate fuel modification/fire hazard reduction planning (e.g., weed abatement, open space 
management plans, firebreaks, planting restrictions) on lands (both public and private) that 
contain terrain and vegetative features such as grass, woodlands and severe slopes 

S-19 Maintain inter-jurisdictional cooperation and coordination, including automatic aid agreements 
with fire protection/suppression agencies in Placer County. 

Seismic and Geologic Hazards Policies 

S-20 Provide for seismic safety and structural integrity in residential, commercial, industrial and public 
facilities through Building Code enforcement. 

S-21 Require site-specific geotechnical studies of development proposals in areas subject to landslide 
potential, erosion, and/or slope instability. 

Other Hazards Policies 
S-22 Require a risk analysis, as appropriate, when reviewing new projects located in close proximity to bulk hazardous 
material facilities, bulk petroleum transmission pipelines, and railroad travel routes. 
S-23 Require quarry safety protection measures prior to the development of any property containing or bordering on 
an existing quarry. The quarry safety protection measures shall identify public safety hazards associated with quarries 
and shall specify the protection methods that will be implemented to ensure public safety. 
S-24 Reduce the exposure of sensitive receptors to potential health risks from toxic air contaminants (TACs). 
Source: Rocklin Draft General Plan Update, Chapter 4D – Community Safety Element 

Table E-22 Rocklin General Plan Mitigation Related Policies (Various Elements) 

General Plan: Various Elements Goals & Policies 

Land Use Policies 

LU-19 Require projects that are approved on severe slopes (25 percent or greater) to establish grading 
design guidelines with their development application. 

Conservation, Development, and Utilization of Natural Resources Policies 

Packet Pg. 72

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-43 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

General Plan: Various Elements Goals & Policies 

OCR-46 Participate as appropriate in a regional approach to the management of drainage basins and flood 
plains with regional agencies such as the Placer County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District. 

OCR-47 Protect the designated City Regulatory Floodplains from encroachment by development that 
would impede flood flows or pose a hazard to occupants. 

OCR-49 Minimize the degradation of water quality through use of erosion control plans and Best 
Management Practices. 

OCR-50 Maintain a grading ordinance that minimizes erosion and siltation of creeks and other 
watercourses. 

OCR-51 Evaluate development along stream channels to ensure that it does not create any of the following 
effects in a significant manner: reduced stream capacity, increased erosion or deterioration of the 
channel. 

OCR-60 Work with the Placer County Water Agency to ensure that available methods and techniques to 
conserve potable water supplies are applied in Rocklin. 

Public Facilities and Services Policies (Law Enforcement, Fire Protection, and Emergency Response) 

PF-12 Identify certain types of development, such as assisted living facilities and group homes that may 
generate higher demand or special needs for emergency services and require developer 
participation to mitigate the needs/demands. 

PF-15 Require City-approved automated entry access to gated communities for emergency vehicles 

PF-23 Require special fire suppression mitigation (such as sprinklering) for any new residential 
development located more than two road miles from a fire station and for any new commercial 
development located more than one and one-half road miles from a fire station. 

PF-24 Support public education concerning fire and life safety. 

PF-25 Require new development to meet fire flow requirements based on standards codified in the 
Uniform Fire Code. 

Public Facilities and Services Policies (Utilities) 

PF-32 Request utility companies to expedite undergrounding of existing above ground utility lines. 

PF-33 Require undergrounding of utility lines in new development, except where infeasible for financial 
and/or operational reasons. 

PF-34 Coordinate with utility companies regarding the location of new high voltage transmission lines, 
seeking undergrounding wherever possible. 

PF-41 Assist the Placer County Water Agency in implementing water conservation practices. 

PF-43 Require that new development proposals include Drainage Master Plans unless waived by the City 
Engineer. 

PF-44 Acquire easements to creeks and waterways to allow for maintenance, inspection, and 
construction of storm drainage facilities. 

Source: 2012 City of Rocklin General Plan 

City of Rocklin Emergency Operations Plan 

The City of Rocklin Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) and Resources Guide addresses the planned 
response for the City of Rocklin to emergencies associated with disasters, technological incidents, or other 
dangerous conditions created by either man or nature. It provides an overview of operational concepts, 

Packet Pg. 73

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-44 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

identifies components of the City emergency management organization, and describes the overall 
responsibilities of local, state, and federal entities. 

E.6.2. Administrative/Technical Mitigation Capabilities 

Table E-24 identifies the City department(s) responsible for activities related to mitigation and loss 
prevention in Rocklin.  

Table E-23 City of Rocklin’s Administrative and Technical Mitigation Capabilities 

Administration Y/N 
Describe capability 
Is coordination effective? 

Planning Commission Y Makes recommendations and/or final decisions on development 
proposals. Coordination is effective 

Mitigation Planning Committee N  

Maintenance programs to reduce risk 
(e.g., tree trimming, clearing drainage 
systems) 

Y Public Services Department conducts tree trimming, weed 
abatement/grazing and drainage channel maintenance activities. 
Coordination is effective. 

Mutual aid agreements Y Rocklin Fire Department belongs to statewide mutual aid 
system. Coordination is effective. 

Other   

Staff 
Y/N 

FT/PT 

Is staffing adequate to enforce regulations? 
Is staff trained on hazards and mitigation? 
Is coordination between agencies and staff effective? 

Chief Building Official Y 
FT 

Through a combination of City staff and contracting with 
outside firms, staffing is adequate to enforce regulations and 
staff is trained on hazards and mitigation. Coordination between 
agencies and staff is effective. 

Floodplain Administrator Y 
FT 

Economic and Community Development Department has 
Floodplain Administrator. 

Emergency Manager Y 
FT 

Fire Chief or Police Chief as designated by City Manager. 
Staffing is adequate to enforce regulations and staff is trained on 
hazards and mitigation. Coordination between agencies and staff 
is effective. 

Community Planner Y 
FT 

Planning staff in Economic and Community Development 
Department. Staffing is adequate to enforce regulations and staff 
is trained on hazards and mitigation. Coordination between 
agencies and staff is effective. 

Civil Engineer Y 
FT 

Engineering staff in Economic and Community Development 
Department. Staffing is adequate to enforce regulations and staff 
is trained on hazards and mitigation. Coordination between 
agencies and staff is effective. 

GIS Coordinator Y GIS Division in Public Services Department. Staffing is adequate 
to enforce regulations and staff is trained on hazards and 
mitigation. Coordination between agencies and staff is effective. 

Other   

Packet Pg. 74

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-45 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Technical  Y/N 

Describe capability 
Has capability been used to assess/mitigate risk in the 
past? 

Warning systems/services 
(Reverse 911, outdoor warning signals) 

Y Police and Fire Departments 

Hazard data and information Y Police, Fire, Economic and Community Development and 
Public Services Departments. 

Grant writing N  

Hazus analysis N  

Other   

How can these capabilities be expanded and improved to reduce risk? 

 
Source: City of Rocklin 

E.6.3. Fiscal Mitigation Capabilities 

Table E-25 identifies financial tools or resources that the City could potentially use to help fund mitigation 
activities.  

Table E-24 City of Rocklin’s Fiscal Mitigation Capabilities 

Funding Resource 

Access/ 
Eligibility 

(Y/N) 

Has the funding resource been used in past 
and for what type of activities? 
Could the resource be used to fund future 
mitigation actions? 

Capital improvements project funding Y Has not been used in past for direct hazard 
mitigation activities, could be used to fund 
future mitigation actions. 

Authority to levy taxes for specific purposes Y (requires 
2/3 voter 
approval) 

Has not been used in past for direct hazard 
mitigation activities, could be used to fund 
future mitigation actions. 

Fees for water, sewer, gas, or electric services N Water, sewer, gas and electric services in 
Rocklin are provided by others (non-City). 

Impact fees for new development Y Has not been used in past for direct hazard 
mitigation activities, could be used to fund 
future mitigation actions. 

Storm water utility fee N  

Incur debt through general obligation bonds and/or 
special tax bonds 

Y Has not been used in past for direct hazard 
mitigation activities, could be used to fund 
future mitigation actions. 

Incur debt through private activities N  

Community Development Block Grant Y Has not been used in past for direct hazard 
mitigation activities, could be used to fund 
future mitigation actions. 

Packet Pg. 75

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-46 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Funding Resource 

Access/ 
Eligibility 

(Y/N) 

Has the funding resource been used in past 
and for what type of activities? 
Could the resource be used to fund future 
mitigation actions? 

Other federal funding programs Y Has not been used in past for direct hazard 
mitigation activities, could be used to fund 
future mitigation actions. 

State funding programs Y Has not been used in past for direct hazard 
mitigation activities, could be used to fund 
future mitigation actions. 

Other   

How can these capabilities be expanded and improved to reduce risk? 

 
Source: City of Rocklin 

E.6.4. Mitigation Education, Outreach, and Partnerships 

Table E-26 identifies education and outreach programs and methods already in place that could be/or are 
used to implement mitigation activities and communicate hazard-related information.  More information 
can be found below the table.  

Table E-25 City of Rocklin’s Mitigation Education, Outreach, and Partnerships 

Program/Organization  Yes/No 

Describe program/organization and how 
relates to disaster resilience and mitigation. 
Could the program/organization help 
implement future mitigation activities? 

Local citizen groups or non-profit organizations 
focused on environmental protection, emergency 
preparedness, access and functional needs 
populations, etc. 

Y Local citizen groups and non-profit 
organizations focused on environmental 

protection are active in Rocklin and region, but 
rarely focus on disaster mitigation. City could 
seek their assistance in helping to implement 

future mitigation activities. 

Ongoing public education or information program 
(e.g., responsible water use, fire safety, household 
preparedness, environmental education) 

Y The City staffs an environmental education 
outreach booth at some special events, could 

assist with implementing future mitigation 
activities. 

Natural disaster or safety related school programs N  

StormReady certification N  

Firewise Communities certification N?  

Public-private partnership initiatives addressing 
disaster-related issues 

N  

Other   

How can these capabilities be expanded and improved to reduce risk? 

 
 

Packet Pg. 76

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-47 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

The City of Rocklin works cooperatively with the State Regional Board, the Central Valley Regional Water 
Quality Control Board, the Placer County Flood Control and Water Conservation District, Cal Fire, and the 
neighboring jurisdictions of Colfax, Lincoln, Loomis, Roseville, Auburn, and Placer County.   

E.6.5. Other Mitigation Efforts 

The City of Rocklin has many other ongoing mitigation efforts that include the following: 

 Weed Abatement Program 
 Annual Drainage Maintenance Program 
 Managed Grazing Program (see Figure E-9) 

Figure E-9 Managed Grazing Program 

 
Source:  City of Rocklin 

E.7 Mitigation Strategy 

E.7.1. Mitigation Goals and Objectives 

The City of Rocklin adopts the hazard mitigation goals and objectives developed by the HMPC and 
described in Chapter 5 Mitigation Strategy. 

E.7.2. NFIP Mitigation Strategy  

The City of Rocklin joined the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) in 2001. As a participant of the 
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), the City of Rocklin has administered floodplain management 
regulations that meet the minimum requirements of the NFIP.  The management program objective is to 
protect people and property within the City. The City of Rocklin will continue to comply with the 
requirements of the NFIP in the future. 

In addition, the City of Rocklin actively participates with the County of Placer to address local NFIP issues 
through a regional approach. Many of the program activities are the same for the City of Rocklin as for 

Packet Pg. 77

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-48 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Placer County since participation at the County level includes all local jurisdictions. An elected official of 
the City of Rocklin is a designated representative on the Placer County Flood Control District Board.  

The City’s regulatory activities apply to existing and new development areas of the City; implementing 
flood protection measures for existing structures and new development and maintaining drainage systems.  
The goal of the program is to enhance public safety, and reduce impacts and losses while protecting the 
environment.  The City has a Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance that regulates construction in the 
floodplain.  The City intends to continue to implement the ordinance and participate at the regional level 
with Placer County implementing appropriate measures to mitigate exposure and damages within 
designated flood prone areas. 

The NFIP’s Community Rating System (CRS) is a voluntary incentive program that recognizes and 
encourages community floodplain management activities that exceed the minimum NFIP requirements. As 
a result, flood insurance premium rates are discounted to reflect the reduced flood risk resulting from the 
community actions meeting the three goals of the CRS which are to reduce flood losses, facilitate accurate 
insurance rating, and promote the awareness of flood insurance.  The City of Rocklin does not participate 
in the CRS. 

E.7.3. Mitigation Actions 

The planning team for the City of Rocklin identified and prioritized the following mitigation actions based 
on the risk assessment. Background information and information on how each action will be implemented 
and administered, such as ideas for implementation, responsible office, potential funding, estimated cost, 
and timeline are also included. 

Action 1. Integrate Local Hazard Mitigation Plan into Safety Element of General Plan 

Hazards Addressed:  All hazards 

Issue/Background:  Local jurisdictional reimbursement for mitigation projects and cost recovery after a 
disaster is guided by Government Code Section 8685.9 (AB 2140).  Specifically, this section requires that 
each jurisdiction adopt a local hazard mitigation plan (LHMP) in accordance with the federal Disaster 
Mitigation Act of 2000 as part of the Safety Element of its General Plan.  Adoption of the LHMP into the 
Safety Element of the General Plan may be by reference or incorporation. 

Other Alternatives:  No action 

Existing Planning Mechanisms through which Action will be Implemented:  Safety Element of General 
Plan 

Responsible Office:  City of Rocklin Planning Department 

Priority (H, M, L):  High 

Cost Estimate:  Jurisdictional board/staff time 

Packet Pg. 78

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-49 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Potential Funding:  Local budgets 

Benefits (avoided Losses):  Incorporation of an adopted LHMP into the Safety Element of the General 
Plan will help jurisdictions maximize the cost recovery potential following a disaster. 

Schedule:  As soon as possible 

Action 1. Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Floodplain/Community Rating 
System (CRS) 

Hazards Addressed:  Flood/Severe Weather (Heavy Rain) 

Issue/Background:  The City of Rocklin has been subject to previous occurrences of flooding and there 
are improved and un-improved parcels within the City that are located within the 100- and 500- year 
floodplains. The City is exploring ways to address floodplain issues through the use of drainage studies, 
drainage improvements, elevation certificates, consideration of participation the Community Rating System 
and other available strategies. 

Other Alternatives:  No action. 

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which Action Will Be Implemented:  See below. 

Responsible Office/Partners:  City of Rocklin Public Services Department and Economic and Community 
Development Department 

Project Priority:  Medium 

Cost Estimate:  It is estimated that the cost of drainage studies, drainage improvements, elevation 
certificates and consideration of participation in the Community Rating System and other available 
strategies ranges between $200,000.00 and $500,000.00, depending upon the costs of the selected 
method(s). 

Benefits (Losses Avoided):  Possible reductions in the number of properties impacted by the 100- and 500-
year floodplains which can provide savings in potential property damage from flood events. Possible 
reductions in the cost and need for flood insurance by private property owners. 

Potential Funding:  Possible grant opportunities, public-private partnerships and possible General Fund 
monies. No grant funding has been utilized for this project to date. 

Timeline:  In process, dependent upon funding. 

Action 2. Creek Channel and Drainage Way Clearing and Maintenance  

Hazards Addressed:  Flooding 

Issue/Background:  The City of Rocklin’s stormwater runoff is channeled through drainage ways and 
numerous small creeks throughout the City. These drainage ways and creeks require regular maintenance 

Packet Pg. 79

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-50 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

to remove vegetation (including invasive plant species) and debris which helps to provide additional 
drainage capacity and reduce localized flooding. 

Other Alternatives:  Continue creek channel and drainage way clearing and maintenance as funding 
becomes available. 

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which Action Will Be Implemented:  The City of Rocklin 
Public Services Department conducts creek channel and drainage way clearing and maintenance throughout 
the City on an annual basis. Locations of these efforts vary from year to year based on available funding, 
known problem areas and timing of last treatment. 

Responsible Office/Partners:  City of Rocklin Public Services Department 

Project Priority:  Medium 

Cost Estimate:  $50,000.00-100,000.00. 

Benefits (Losses Avoided):  Decreases in localized flooding and decreases in potential property damage 
and/or loss. 

Potential Funding:  Possible grant opportunities and General Fund monies. No grant funding has been 
utilized for this project to date. 

Timeline:  In process, dependent upon funding. 

Action 3. High Water Use Landscape and Irrigation Retrofit 

Hazards Addressed:  Drought, Fire Risk 

Issue/Background:  The City of Rocklin has some park and open space areas and roadway landscaping 
that contain high water use plants and/irrigation systems that could be considered inefficient and wasteful 
from a water conservation standpoint. These areas are in need of retrofit to reduce water use. 

Other Alternatives:  Reduce or eliminate water use and allow landscaping to die. 

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which Action Will Be Implemented:  In response to mandated 
water restrictions in 2015 the City initiated a retrofit program that consisted of retrofitting existing irrigation 
systems with water efficient irrigation systems and replacing high water use landscape with low water use 
landscape. In addition the City identified areas of parks and open space that were not critical for public use 
and allowed these areas to “brown out”. 

Responsible Office/Partners:  City of Rocklin Public Services Department 

Project Priority:  Medium 

Cost Estimate:  Unknown. 

Packet Pg. 80

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-51 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Benefits (Losses Avoided):  Decreased water usage and fire risk reduction. 

Potential Funding:  Possible grant opportunities and General Fund monies. No grant funding has been 
utilized for this project to date. 

Timeline:  In process, dependent upon funding. 

Action 4. Open Space Fire Prevention & Vegetation Management Prescribed Grazing 

Hazards Addressed:  Wildfire and Agriculture (Invasive Plant Species Removal) 

Issue/Background:  Historically, vegetation management in Rocklin was limited to partial hand and 
chemical perimeter treatment on parcels accessible with equipment, which does nothing to address the 
build-up of fire fuels in open space areas where terrain ranges from gentle slopes to steep, rocky hillsides. 
A large portion of the open space areas in the City are regulated by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and 
as such fuel load mitigation methods are very limited. Because most of Rocklin’s open space areas are 
adjacent to residential and commercial developments, wildfires can jeopardize life and property and limited 
natural resources. Additionally, many open space preserves contain invasive plant species that continue to 
spread and out-compete native plant species. Prescribed grazing represents a transition to a more area-wide, 
holistic management approach to hazard mitigation and invasive species removal in open space areas prone 
to wildfire and invasive plant species infestation. Additional open space areas are added to the City as 
development occurs. 

Other Alternatives:  No action or hand and small tool removal. 

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which Action Will Be Implemented:  See below. 

Responsible Office/Partners:  City of Rocklin Public Services Department, Environmental Services 
Division and City of Rocklin Fire Department 

Project Priority:  High 

Cost Estimate:  It is estimated that annual grazing costs for the City’s open space areas range between 
$100,000.00 - $150,000.00, depending upon the rate of growth, the length of the growing season and the 
number of passes that are necessary. 

Benefits (Losses Avoided):  The reduction of fire fuel loads which decreases the intensity of wildfires, 
which in turn can provide savings in potential property and natural resource damage. It also reduces the 
need for mechanical means of fuel reduction, is an environmentally friendly approach to fuel load 
management and helps to mitigate invasive plant species. 

Potential Funding:  The City has pursued grant opportunities in the past to help fund the transition that 
will serve as the catalyst that establishes a balanced, maintainable open space ecosystem so that vegetation 
can be controlled through routine, scheduled maintenance grazing. The grazing program is currently funded 
through Community Facilities Districts which are financing districts that allow for the collection of special 

Packet Pg. 81

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-52 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

taxes on individual properties; they are incurred annually and collected at the same time as property taxes. 
No grant funding has been utilized for this project to date. 

Timeline:  In process. Managed prescribed grazing begins in the early spring and is geared towards 
completion in June/July, prior to the onset of fire season. Weather and the condition of vegetation can 
influence grazing periods. 

Action 5. GIS Based Mapping of Pertinent Information that can be used by All Agencies in the 
Development of Plans and During Emergency Incidents 

Hazards Addressed:  Multi-hazard 

Issue/Background:  The City of Rocklin is in the process of creating and continuously updating a GIS 
based mapping system that provides information of various infrastructure as well as systems and areas that 
are of benefit in pre-planning for emergencies or mitigation of such emergencies. Some of these obtained 
and desired data include: water system, sewer system, storm water system, fire hazard zones, emergency 
evacuation routes, fire response zones, fire hydrant locations and flow information, police beats and 
response times, street names and addresses, zoning information, property ownership and as-built 
improvement plans. 

Other Alternatives:  Continue to use existing technology and hard copy information that must be accessed 
through multiple locations and methods. 

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which Action Will Be Implemented:  See below. 

Responsible Office/Partners:  City of Rocklin Public Services Department, GIS Division 

Project Priority:  High 

Cost Estimate:  It is estimated that an additional $100,000.00 is needed. The funds will be used to add to 
City General Fund dollars to expand the GIS system and database, including infrastructure and pre-
emergency data. On-going maintenance costs will be covered by the City of Rocklin. 

Benefits (Losses Avoided):  The City of Rocklin has been gathering infrastructure and pre-emergency 
related data for many years. Additional funding would allow the gathering of more data and the migration 
of such information into a GIS system sooner. It is difficult to put an exact cost benefit from such a project. 
Identification of critical infrastructure and use in pre-planning for emergencies would be the greatest 
benefit. A GIS system is more cost effective in maintenance and updating since it will only require data 
entry to an already established system. Such a system could also interface with other regional agencies and 
provide easy access for critical information sharing. 

Potential Funding:  The City’s General Fund has now funded a full-time GIS Analyst position and several 
part-time positions to expand its GIS system and database, including infrastructure and pre-emergency data. 
No grant funding has been utilized for this project to date. 

Packet Pg. 82

Agenda Item #8.



Placer County City of Rocklin Annex E-53 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
March 2016 

Timeline:  In process. Multiple shape files/layers have been created since the implementation of this plan 
in 2005 for the Fire Department, Police Department and Public Services Department. As resources become 
available to create new layers, the system will continue to become more dynamic and comprehensive. 

Packet Pg. 83

Agenda Item #8.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2016- 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  
OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN RECOMMENDING  

CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL TO AMEND THE CITY OF ROCKLIN GENERAL PLAN 
COMMUNITY SAFETY ELEMENT TO INCORPORATE BY REFERENCE THE PLACER COUNTY 

2016 LOCAL MULTI-HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN (LHMP) UPDATE 
 

(GENERAL PLAN UPDATE: PLACER COUNTY 2016 LOCAL MULTI-HAZARD MITIGATION 
PLAN (LHMP) UPDATE/GPA2016-0005) 

 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and determines 
that:  
 
 A.  Congress adopted the Disaster Mitigation Act 2000 (DMA-2000) on 
October 31, 2000 as PL106-390.  The emphasis of DMA-2000 is on creating an ongoing, 
community-wide public/government planning process that results in the local governing 
board formally adopting a LHMP.; and 
 
 B. Mitigation planning is a process for state and local governments to 
identify community-level policies and actions that will mitigate and thus reduce the 
impacts of natural hazards.  As specified by DMA-2000, local governments are required 
to complete and update a LHMP every five years in order to remain eligible for future 
federal disaster mitigation funding. In accordance with DMA-2000, a LHMP must 
describe the type, location, and extent of all natural hazards that can affect the 
jurisdiction; describe the jurisdictions vulnerability to these hazards; include a mitigation 
strategy that provides the jurisdictions blueprint for reducing the potential losses; and 
contain a plan maintenance process; and 
 
 C. In 2005, Placer County Office of Emergency Services (PCOES) working 
with 15 jurisdictions and a hired consultant, AMEC Consulting, completed the original 
LHMP and subsequently received the Council’s adoption and FEMA approval; and 
 
 D. In 2010, PCOES applied and received a FEMA grant, hired AMEC 
Consulting, and partnered with 17 jurisdictions to complete the LHMP update resulting 
in the Council’s adoption and FEMA approval; and 
 
 E. For the 2016 LHMP update project, PCOES received a FEMA grant in May 
2014 and hired Foster Morrison Consulting in early April of 2015.  Following a similar 
process as required by FEMA for the 2005 and 2010 LHMPs, the process began with the 
reconvening of the Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee (HMPC) Working Group 
followed by a publicly noticed kick-off meeting in late April 2015. Seven other working 

Packet Pg. 84

Agenda Item #8.a.



 
Page 2 of 2 
Reso. No. PC-2016- 

meetings, all publicly noticed, were held in subsequent months to conduct the LHMP 
planning and updating process.  The HMPC Working Group consisted of representatives 
from select County Departments, the cities of Colfax, Auburn, Lincoln and Rocklin, the 
Town of Loomis, and participating Fire Districts and Special Districts within the County.  
All HMPC members contributed substantially to the LHMP update process.  Additionally, 
public meetings were held at the beginning of the project and near conclusion of the 
project to provide the public multiple opportunities to ask questions and provide input 
on the LHMP Update.; and, 
 

F. The 2016 Placer County LHMP Update meets the requirements of DMA-
2000.  Key LHMP highlights include: 

 
• Positioning the County and participating jurisdictions to compete 

more effectively for pre- and post-disaster mitigation funding. 
• Development of the LHMP Update in accordance with the National 

Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) Community Rating System (CRS) 
Activity 510 requirements to enhance the floodplain management 
programs of the County and Cities and to help reduce the cost of 
flood insurance for County residents. 

• Participation of 22 participating jurisdictions including the County, 
five incorporated communities and 16 special districts. 

• An updated hazard risk assessment for 18 hazards, which included 
flood, wildfire, drought, earthquake, dam failure, seiche, severe 
storms, and agricultural hazards as priority hazards of concern to the 
County. 

• An assessment of the impact of climate change on identified hazards 
of concern. 

• Development of an updated mitigation strategy for the County and 
all participating jurisdictions, including new plan goals and objectives 
and the identification of 135 mitigation actions to address identified 
hazards; and, 

 
G. In October 2006, the California Legislature passed AB 2140 which became 

effective January 1, 2007.  This bill prohibits the state share for any eligible project from 
exceeding 75% of total state eligible costs unless the local agency is located within a city, 
county, or city and county that has adopted a local hazard mitigation plan in accordance 
with DMA-2000 as part of the safety element of its general plan, in which case the 
Legislature may provide for a state share of local costs that exceeds 75% of total state 
eligible costs; and 

 
H. Among other requirements specific to the development of a FEMA-

approved LHMP, the local agency must provide a certified copy of the Resolution of 
Adoption to FEMA demonstrating that the approved LHMP has been adopted and 
incorporated into the Safety Element of the General Plan. While not a guarantee, 

Packet Pg. 85

Agenda Item #8.a.



 
Page 3 of 2 
Reso. No. PC-2016- 

adoption of the LHMP into the Safety Element of the General Plan would allow the City 
of Rocklin to qualify for additional funding for certain disaster recovery projects. 

 
I. The California Office of Emergency Services and Federal Emergency 

Management Agency, Region IX officials have reviewed the Placer County 2016 Local 
Multi- Hazard Mitigation Plan and approved it contingent upon this official adoption of 
the participating governments and entities; 

 
Section 2.  The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 

recommends that: 
A.  The Rocklin City Council approve the Placer County 2016 Local Multi- 

Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update; and 
 
B.  The Rocklin City Council incorporates the Placer County 2016 Local 

Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update by reference into the City of Rocklin 
General Plan Community Safety Element. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of October, 2016, by the following roll call 
vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners: 
NOES:  Commissioners: 
ABSENT: Commissioners: 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners: 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Chairman 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary    
 
 

Packet Pg. 86

Agenda Item #8.a.



 

 
City of Rocklin Community Development Department 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Planning Commission 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Appeal of Canopy Modification Denial 

For See’s Candies 
 

October 18, 2016 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Background 
 
In July 2016, See’s Candies applied for a Tenant Improvement (T.I.) to occupy a newly-
constructed building within the Rocklin Crossings Shopping Center, which was approved 
December 9, 2008 by Ordinance 942. The proposed space is located at 5498 Crossings Drive, 
Suite 102 (see Figure 1). See’s Candies is the first tenant to propose a T.I. within this building 
suite.   
 

Figure 1 – Aerial Photo 

 
 

As part of the T.I., the applicant has proposed to modify the exterior of the space to add two 
awnings, one on the north and one on the south side of the building. The proposed design of 
the awnings would include black, white, and gray striping, which reflect the corporate branding 
of the franchise according to the applicant. No new paint or other exterior treatments have 
been proposed which do not currently exist on the tenant space. The proposed exterior design 
is included as Figures 3 and 4.  

Packet Pg. 87

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Appeal of Canopy Modification Denial for See’s Candies 
October 18, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

Figure 3 – Proposed Front (North)           Figure 4 – Proposed Rear (South) 

     
 
 

The Rocklin Crossings General Development Plan (PDG) contains Design Review Guidelines 
which regulate the exterior of buildings within the shopping center. While the PDG encourages 
a variety of canopy forms along the pedestrian walkways, it states that all colors and materials 
shall be selected from the approved material legend and shall be coordinated on the exterior 
elevations of all buildings to maintain and promote continuity of the design themes.  
 
For awnings within the center, the approved material legend provides seven different options 
for awning colors, which include black cherry, cocoa, fern, linin tweed, parchment, true brown, 
and wheat (see Figure 5) as solid color awnings only. However, the applicant’s design for the 
awnings have been proposed to include black, white, and gray striping, which is a color palette 
consistent with the corporate branding of the franchise (see Figure 6).  

 

Figure 5 – Approved Color Palette        Figure 6 – Proposed Color Palette

 
 
 

Packet Pg. 88

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Appeal of Canopy Modification Denial for See’s Candies 
October 18, 2016 
Page 3 
 
Due to the specificity of the Design Guidelines, as well as the fact that all of the other awnings 
installed within the center to date are comprised of only one solid color each, the striped 
design shown in Figure 6 could not be determined to be substantially compliant with the 
approved color palette shown in Figure 5. Staff therefore informed the applicant that the 
proposed awnings were inconsistent with the Design Guidelines and denied the striped awning 
design.  
 
It was explained to the applicant that the use of solid awnings which utilize a color tone in the 
same family as those stipulated in the Design Guidelines could be determined to be 
substantially compliant. Based on this, the applicant submitted revised plans with the awnings 
modified to show a solid design. Staff determined this revision to be substantially compliant 
and approved this design as part of the Tenant Improvement.   
 
Appeal 
 
Following approval of the T.I., the applicant again approached staff to question whether there 
was any possibility of modifying the awnings to allow for the striped design in order to reflect 
the corporate branding of the business. Staff informed the applicant that a determination had 
already been made that the striped pattern was inconsistent with the approved Design 
Guidelines. It was explained to the applicant that this determination could be appealed to the 
Planning Commission, in accordance with Rocklin Municipal Code Section 17.86.010, which 
states the following: 
 

Any person dissatisfied by an act or determination of an official of the City relating to the 
enforcement or interpretation of this title may appeal such act or determination to the 
Planning Commission as provided in this chapter. 

 
The applicant filed an appeal of the staff determination on September 7, 2016. In a letter dated 
September 2, 2016, the applicant stated that it is important that the company be allowed to 
include the branding which has been with the company since it started in 1921. The letter is 
included as Attachment 1.  
 
Discussion 
 
As stated previously, it is the conclusion of staff that the proposed striped canopy awnings do 
not comply with the approved color palette for the PDG.   
 
However, if it is determined by the Planning Commission that the proposed awning design is 
substantially compliant with the approved Design Guidelines, staff would be able to approve 
the modification through the T.I. process and no further entitlements would be required.  Such 
a determination would establish a precedent for approval of future requests for striped or 
patterned awnings in the Rocklin Crossings Shopping Center. 
 
 

Packet Pg. 89

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Appeal of Canopy Modification Denial for See’s Candies 
October 18, 2016 
Page 4 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Letter from Applicant 
 

 

Packet Pg. 90

Agenda Item #9.



Packet Pg. 91

Agenda Item #9.



Packet Pg. 92

Agenda Item #9.


	AGENDA
	INTRODUCTION
	1. Meeting called to order at
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	4. Minutes
	a. September 6, 2016
	[09.06.16 Minutes.pdf]

	b. October 4, 2016
	[10.04.16 minutes.pdf]


	5. Correspondence
	6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items

	CONSENT ITEMS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	7. PINE STREET TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP
DIVISION OF LAND, DL2016-0004

This application is a request for approval of a Tentative Parcel Map to allow the division of a 13,607 square foot parcel into two parcels. Parcel 1 is proposed at 8,807 square feet, and Parcel 2 at 5,520 square feet. A new 2,294 sq.ft. residence with  443 sq. ft. attached garage is currently under construction on proposed Parcel 1.  The subject site is located on the northeast corner of Pine Street and Grove Street.  APN 010-098-005. The property is zoned Residential Single Family 5,000 Square Foot Minimum Lots (R1-5).  The General Plan designation is Medium Density Residential (MDR).

A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15315, Minor Land Divisions, has tentatively identified a Categorical Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review for this project.

The applicant is Carlos Colon.  The property owner is Alma Colon.

	[1 - Pine Street Parcel Map DL2016-0004 SR (PC 101816).pdf]
	a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City Of Rocklin Approving a Notice of Exemption (Pine Street Tentative Parcel Map / DL2016-0004)
	[2 - Pine Street Parcel Map NOE and Reso 15315 (2016) .pdf]

	b. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Tentative Parcel Map (Pine Street Tentative Parcel Map / DL2016-0004)
	[3 - Pine Street Parcel Map DL2016-0004 (PC 10-18-16) Reso w-exh.pdf]


	8. GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT, PLACER COUNTY 2016 LOCAL MULTI-HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN (LHMP) UPDATE (GPA2016-0005)
CITY OF ROCKLIN

The project is a General Plan Amendment to update the Community Safety Element of the General Plan to incorporate by reference the Placer County 2016 Local Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) update consistent with the requirements of Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA-2000), which requires local governments to update their LHMP every five years in order to be eligible for future federal disaster mitigation funding.

The General Plan Amendment is initiated by the City of Rocklin and would be effective City-wide.

The City of Rocklin’s Environmental Coordinator has reviewed the General Plan Amendment: Placer County 2016 Local Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update project and has determined that the project as proposed will not cause a direct physical change in the environment, nor a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change to the environment.  The adoption of the LHMP therefore does not constitute the approval of a project under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and it is considered exempt from CEQA (Public Resources Code sections 15060 (c)(2)(3); 15061 (b)(3) and 15378 (a).)

	[2016-xxx DMA LHMP update PC 10182016.pdf]
	a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending City Council Approval To Amend the City of Rocklin General Plan Community Safety Element to Incorporate by Reference The Placer County 2016 Local Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update
(General Plan Update: Placer County 2016 Local Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update/GPA2016-0005)

	[2016-xxx PC DMA Reso  RESO.pdf]



	NON PUBLIC HEARINGS
	9. SEE'S CANDIES AWNING SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE  - APPEAL OF STAFF DETERMINATION
	[Appeal of Sees Candies SR w-att.pdf]

	10. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners
	11. Reports from City Staff
	12. Adjournment


